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CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS Main: 949.474.2020 | Fax: 949.263.5520

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

Board of Commissioners
City of Oxnard Housing Authority
Oxnard, California

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of the City of Oxnard Housing Authority (“the
Authority”), a component unit of the City of Oxnard, as of and for the year June 30, 2024,
and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the Authority’s
basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents.

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements present fairly, in all material respects,
the financial position of the Authority as of June 30, 2024, and the changes in financial position
and, where applicable, cash flows thereof for the year then ended in accordance with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the
United States of America (GAAS) and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in
Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States
(Government Auditing Standards). Our responsibilities under those standards are further
described in the Auditor’'s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of
our report. We are required to be independent of the Authority and to meet our other ethical
responsibilities, in accordance with the relevant ethical requirements relating to our audit. We
believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinion.

Responsibilities of Management for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial
statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States
of America, and for the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant
to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is required to evaluate whether there are
conditions or events, considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about the
Authority’s ability to continue as a going concern for twelve months beyond the financial
statement date, including any currently known information that may raise substantial doubt
shortly thereafter.



Board of Commissioners
City of Oxnard Housing Authority
Oxnard, California

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as
a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an
auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance
but is not absolute assurance and therefore is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with GAAS and Government Auditing Standards will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from
fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. Misstatements
are considered material if there is a substantial likelihood that, individually or in the
aggregate, they would influence the judgment made by a reasonable user based on the
financial statements.

In performing an audit in accordance with GAAS and Government Auditing Standards, we:

e Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the
audit.

e Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, and design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks. Such procedures include examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding
the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Authority’s internal control.
Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed.

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluate the overall
presentation of the financial statements.

e Conclude whether, in our judgment, there are conditions or events, considered in the
aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about the Authority’s ability to continue as a
going concern for a reasonable period of time.

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit, significant audit findings, and certain
internal control-related matters that we identified during the audit.

Emphasis of Matter

As discussed in Note 1, the financial statements present only the Authority and do not purport
to, and do not, present fairly the financial position of the City of Oxnard, as of June 30, 2024,
and the changes in its financial position for the year then ended in accordance with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America. Our opinion is not modified
with respect to this matter.

Report on Summarized Comparative Information

We have previously audited the Authority’s 2023 financial statements, and we expressed an
unmodified audit opinion on those audited financial statements in our report dated January
18, 2024. In our opinion, the summarized comparative information presented herein as of
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and for the year ended June 30, 2024 is consistent, in all material respects, with the audited
financial statements from which it has been derived.

Required Supplementary Information

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the
Management’s Discussion and Analysis, Schedules of the Authority’s Proportionate Share of
the Net Pension Liability, Schedules of Plan Contributions, and the Schedule of the Authority’s
Proportionate Share of the Total OPEB Liability, be presented to supplement the basic financial
statements. Such information is the responsibility of management and, although not a part
of the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards
Board who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic
financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. We have
applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary information in accordance
with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America, which consisted
of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the information and comparing
the information for consistency with management’s responses to our inquiries, the basic
financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial
statements. We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information
because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an
opinion or provide any assurance.

Other Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the financial statements
that collectively comprise the Authority’s basic financial statements. The accompanying
Financial Data Schedule, Schedule of Actual Modernization Cost Certificates and the Schedule
of Expenditures of Federal Awards, as required by the U.S. Code of Federal Regulations, Title
2, Grants and Agreements, Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles,
and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards listed in the table of contents as Supplemental
Data are presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of the basic
financial statements. The accompanying Financial Data Schedule is required by the Uniform
Financial Reporting Standards issued by the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban
Development. Additionally, the Schedule of Actual Modernization Cost Certificates is
presented in accordance with the filing requirements with the U.S. Department of Housing
and Urban Development.

The Financial Data Schedule, Schedule of Actual Modernization Cost Certificates and the
Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards are the responsibility of management and were
derived from and relate directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to
prepare the basic financial statements. The information has been subjected to the auditing
procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and certain additional
procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying
accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements or to the basic
financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing
standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the Financial
Data Schedule, Schedule of Actual Modernization Cost Certificates and the Schedule of
Expenditures of Federal Awards are fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation to the
basic financial statements as a whole.
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Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated
February 7, 2025 on our consideration of the Authority’s internal control over financial
reporting and on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations,
contracts, and grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is solely to
describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance
and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of internal
control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit
performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the Authority’s
internal control over financial reporting and compliance.

Dm} g’-’ LR

Irvine, California
February 7, 2025
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MANAGEMENT’'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS



MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

The City of Oxnard Housing Authority (“the Authority”) management’s discussion and
analysis provides an overview of the Authority’s financial activity and assists the reader in
focusing on significant financial issues for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2024. Readers are
encouraged to consider the information presented here in conjunction with the
accompanying basic financial statements included in this report.

The Management’s Discussion and Analysis (MD&A) is an element of the reporting model
adopted by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) in their Statement No.
34 Basic Financial Statements — and Management’s Discussion and Analysis — for State and
Local Governments issued in June 1999. Certain comparative information between the
current year and the prior year is required to be presented in the MD&A.

Financial Highlights

e Total operating revenues for all programs were over $39.7 million for the year. Rental
and other income generated approximately $6.0 million towards this amount, with HUD
grants and subsidies covering the balance.

e The assets of the Authority exceeded its liabilities at the close of the most recent fiscal
year by approximately $38.2 million. Of that amount, approximately $11.2 million was
considered unrestricted net position, approximately $2.4 million is restricted net position;
and the remainder of approximately $24.6 million is net investment in capital assets.

e The Authority’s net position increased approximately $7.3 million as a result of this year’s
operations.

Overview of the Financial Statements

This discussion and analysis are intended to serve as an introduction to the Authority’s basic
financial statements. The Authority’s basic financial statements are comprised of a
statement of net position, statement of revenues, expenses and changes in net position,
statement of cash flows and notes to basic financial statements.

Financial statements

A fund is a grouping of related accounts that is used to maintain control over resources that
have been segregated for specific activities or objectives. The Authority uses fund
accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with finance-related legal requirements.
Some funds are required to be established by the Department of Housing and Urban
Development (HUD). However, the Housing Authority establishes other funds to help it
control and manage money for particular purposes or to show that it is meeting legal
responsibilities for using grants and other moneys. All of the funds of the Authority are
classified as one enterprise fund.

Enterprise funds account for activities similar to those found in the private sector, where the
determination of net income is necessary or useful for sound financial administration. They
are reported using the full accrual method of accounting in which all assets and all liabilities
associated with the operation of these funds are included on the balance sheet. The focus
of enterprise funds is on income measurement, which, together with the maintenance of
equity, is an important financial indication. The financial data schedules by program are
included under supplemental data.

The Statement of Net Position presents information on all of the Authority’s assets and
liabilities, with the difference between the two reported as net position. Over time,



increases or decreases in net position may serve as a useful indicator of whether the
financial position of the Authority is improving or deteriorating. Assets and liabilities are
presented in order of liquidity, and are classified as “current” (convertible into cash or due
within one year) and “non-current.” The purpose of the Statement of Net Position is to
present the net available liquid (non-capital) assets net of liabilities, for the Authority. Net
Position is reported in three broad categories:

Net Investment in Capital Assets: This consists of capital assets less accumulated
depreciation on those assets, net of related debt.

Restricted Net Position: This consists of assets with constraints on how they are
used.

Unrestricted Net Position: This consists of assets that do not meet the definition of
“Net Investment in Capital Assets” or “"Restricted Net Position.”

The Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position presents information
showing how the Authority’s net position changed during the most recent fiscal year. All
changes in net position are reported as soon as the underlying event giving rise to the
change occurs, regardless of the timing of related cash flows. Thus, revenues and expenses
are reported in this statement for some items that will only result in cash flows in future
fiscal periods.

The Statement of Cash Flows presents the change in the Authority’s cash and cash
equivalents during the most recent fiscal year.

The Notes to Basic Financial Statements provide additional information that is essential to a
full understanding of the data provided in the fund financial statements.



Financial Analysis

The analysis below focuses on the net position (Table 1) and the changes in net position

(Table 2) of the Authority as a whole.

By far the largest portion of the Authority’s net

position reflects its investment in capital assets (e.g., land, buildings, furniture, equipment

and machinery), net of all depreciation and related capital debt.

The Authority uses these

capital assets to provide services to clients; consequently, these assets are not available for

future spending.

Current and other assets
Capital assets, net

Total assets

Deferred Outflows
Pension Contribution

Long-term liabilities
Other Liabilities

Total Liabilities
Deferred Inflows
Pension Accrual
Net position:
Net investment in capital assets
Restricted for housing assistance payments
Restricted for debt service
Restricted for Construction
Unrestricted

Table 1
Statement of Net Position

Increase

2024 2023 (Decrease)

$ 27,353,617 $ 24,895,422 ¢ 2,458,195
24,627,615 18,598,305 6,029,310
_ 51,981,232 43,493,727 8,487,505
3,521,445 3,561,858 (40,413)
13,349,436 12,480,590 868,846
3,194,132 2,741,310 452,822
16,543,568 15,221,900 1,321,668
779,600 932,244 (152,644)
24,627,615 18,598,305 6,029,310
69,156 92,029 (22,873)
708,756 676,685 32,071
1,574,178 1,618,599 (44,421)
11,199,804 9,915,823 1,283,981

Total net position $ 38,179,509 $ 30,901,441 $ 7,278,068

%

9.87%
32.42%

19.51%

-1.13%

6.96%
16.52%

8.68%

-16.37%

32.42%
-24.85%
4.74%
-2.74%
13%

23.55%



The following is an explanation of the major factors affecting the changes between
fiscal years as shown in the table above:

Capital assets increased $6,029,310 (net of depreciation) as follows:

Asset type Amount
Land $ 1,378,794
Buildings 3,396,429
Furniture, equipment and machinery 28,541
Construction in progress 347,801

Total additions (subtractions) 5,151,565
Less depreciation 877,745
Capital asset increase (decrease) $ 6,029,310

Current and other assets increased by approximately $2.5 million primarily due to an
increase in cash and investments.

Total liabilities increased approximately $1.3 million due to a significant increase in

net pension liabilities and increases in notes payable and family self-sufficiency
liabilities.



Table 2

Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position

Operating revenue:
Federal grants and subsidies
Rental and other

Non-operating revenue:
Investment income
Capital contributions
Other

Total revenues

Operating expenses:
Administrative
Tenant services
Utilities
Maintenance and operations
General
Housing assistance payments
Depreciation

Non-operating expenses:
Interest expense
Casualty loss

Total expenses

Increase (decrease) in net position

Increase
2024 2023  (Decrease)

$ 33,783,691 $ 28,219,591 5,564,100
6,003,623 5,610,971 392,652
1,154,674 528,081 626,593
4,628,539 2,557,794 2,070,745
3,104,739 2,035,028 1,069,711
48,675,266 38,951,465 9,723,801
5,064,666 4,133,739 930,927
310,747 404,786 (94,039)
881,068 844,524 36,544
2,652,265 2,102,816 549,449
1,267,382 1,163,829 103,553
30,115,824 24,923,551 5,192,273
1,075,057 819,136 255,921
29,746 45,334 (15,588)

443 - 443
41,397,198 34,437,715 6,959,483

$ 7,278,068 $ 4,513,750 2,764,318

%

19.72%
7.00%

118.65%
80.96%
52.56%

24.96%

22.52%
-23.23%
4.33%
26.13%
8.90%
20.83%
31.24%

-34.38%

20.21%

61.24%

The following is an explanation of the changes between fiscal years as shown in the

table above:

e Total revenues increased by approximately $9.7 million primarily due to a
significant increase in HAP funding of approximately $5.5 million, a $2.1 million
increase in capital contributions, a $1.1 million increase in grant revenue for the
acquisition of capital assets, an increase of $600,000 in investment income and
an increase of $400,000 in rental and other income. Total expenses increased by
approximately $7.0 million due to significant increases in HAP expenditures ($5.2
million), a significant increase of $1.1 million in other operating expenses and an
increase of $700,000 in pension related expenses.



Capital Assets

The Authority’s investment in capital assets as of June 30, 2024, amounts to $24,627,615
(net of accumulated depreciation). This investment in capital assets includes land,
buildings, furniture, equipment, machinery and construction in progress. The total increase
in the Authority’s investment in capital assets for the current fiscal year was approximately
32.4%, which was primarily a result of the purchase of 1 multi-family residential property
and the addition of capital fund projects.

Capital Assets at Year-end

2024 2023
Land $ 11,242,276 $ 9,863,482
Buildings and improvements 45,373,815 41,977,386
Furniture, equipment and machinery 2,010,726 1,982,185
Construction in progress 3,153,154 2,805,353
Totals $ 61,779,971 $ 56,628,406

Debt

Long-term debt includes accrued pension and OPEB liabilities, annual and sick leave (also
known as compensated absences), liabilities relating to the family self-sufficiency program,
and a note payable to the City of Oxnard for predevelopment costs of affordable units on
vacant Housing Authority land. More detail is presented about long-term liabilities in the
Notes to Basic Financial Statements.

Economic Factors

The Authority is primarily dependent upon the Department of Housing and Urban
Development (HUD) for the funding of operations; therefore, the Authority is affected more
by the federal budget than by local economic conditions. Low Rent Public Housing and
Housing Choice Voucher program budgets are approved by the Housing Authority Board of
Commissioners and are submitted to HUD as required.

Requests for Information

This financial report is designed to provide users of these financial statements with a
general overview of the Authority’s finances and to show the Authority’s accountability for
the money it receives. Questions concerning any of the information provided in this report
or request for additional financial information should be addressed to the Authority’s Finance
Department, at the City of Oxnard Housing Authority, 435 South D Street, Oxnard,
California 93030.

10
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CITY OF OXNARD HOUSING AUTHORITY
Statement of Net Position

June 30, 2024
(With Comparative Totals for June 30, 2023)

2024

2023

Assets

Current assets:
Cash and investments (note 2)
Restricted cash (note 2)
Cash restricted for security deposits (note 2)
Investments with fiscal agent (note 2)
Restricted investments for FSS, construction and proceeds (note 2)
Interest receivable
Accounts receivable - HUD
Accounts receivable - tenants
Accounts receivable - other, net
Other current assets

$ 19,221,865

$ 16,990,291

Total current assets

Noncurrent assets:
Notes receivable (note 3)
Capital assets (note 4):
Land
Construction in progress
Other capital assets
Less accumulated depreciation

Capital assets, net

Total noncurrent assets

Total assets

Deferred Outflows of Resources

Deferred outflows of resources:
Deferred outflows - pension related items (note 10)
Deferred outflows - OPEB related items (note 11)

Total deferred outflows of resources

136,917 64,423
157,130 152,920
708,756 676,685
2,321,462 2,138,718
390,933 275,172
1,098,582 954,854
34,000 26,982
68,027 365,190
94,539 128,781
24,232,211 21,774,016
3,121,406 3,121,406
11,242,276 9,863,482
3,153,154 2,805,353
47,384,541 43,959,571

(37,152,356) _ (38,030,101)
24,627,615 18,598,305
27,749,021 21,719,711
51,981,232 43,493,727
2,248,284 2,895,629
1,273,161 666,229
3,521,445 3,561,858

11
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CITY OF OXNARD HOUSING AUTHORITY
Statement of Net Position (Continued)

June 30, 2024
(With Comparative Totals for June 30, 2023)

2024 2023
Liabilities
Current liabilities:
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities $ 1,473,154 $ 1,182,727
Salaries and benefits payable 336,283 296,899
Unearned revenue 89,879 29,928
Accrued interest payable 81,195 72,734
Tenant security deposits payable 171,485 152,920
In-lieu of taxes payable 37,002 32,687
Compensated absences payable, current (note 5) 290,041 225,662
Family self sufficiency liabilities (note 5) 445,383 48,043
Notes payable (notes 5 and 7) 269,710 269,710
Bonds payable, current (notes 5 and 6) - 430,000
Total current liabilities 3,194,132 2,741,310
Long-term liabilities:
Compensated absences payable (note 5) 411,595 479,045
Family self sufficiency liabilities (note 5) 279,840 449,316
Advances from City (notes 5 and 7) 679,287 671,306
Notes payable (notes 5 and 7) 212,740 -
Other post employment benefits liability (notes 5 and 11) 3,286,576 2,258,965
Net pension liability (notes 5 and 10) 8,479,398 8,621,958
Total long-term liabilities 13,349,436 12,480,590
Total liabilities 16,543,568 15,221,900
Deferred Inflows of Resources
Deferred inflows - pension related items (note 10) 105,975 133,963
Deferred inflows - OPEB related items (note 11) 673,625 798,281
Total deferred inflows of resources 779,600 932,244
Net Position
Net position:
Investment in capital assets 24,627,615 18,598,305
Restricted for housing assistance payments and other 69,156 92,029
Restricted for debt service 708,756 676,685
Restricted for construction 1,574,178 1,618,599
Unrestricted 11,199,804 9,915,823
Total net position $ 38,179,509 $ 30,901,441

See accompanying notes to financial statements

12



CITY OF OXNARD HOUSING AUTHORITY

Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position

Year ended June 30, 2024

(With Comparative Totals for June 30, 2023)

Operating revenues:
Grant revenue for operations
Dwelling rental income
Management fee income
Other revenue

Total operating revenues

Operating expenses:
Administrative expenses
Tenant services
Utilities
Ordinary maintenance and operations
Extraordinary maintenance
Protective services
Insurance premiums
Other general expenses
Housing assistance payments
Depreciation

Total operating expenses
Operating income (loss)
Nonoperating revenue (expenses):

Grant revenue
Investment income
Gain (Loss) on disposal of capital assets
Gain on acquisition of capital assets
Fraud recovery

Interest expense
Casualty loss

Total nonoperating revenue (expenses)

Income (loss) before contributions
Capital contributions

Change in net position
Net position at beginning of year

Net position at end of year

2024 2023
$ 33,783,691 $ 28,219,591
5,400,838 5,048,081
22,174 32,454
580,611 530,436
39,787,314 33,830,562
5,064,666 4,133,739
310,747 404,786
881,068 844,524
2,652,265 2,089,027
- 13,789
129,506 131,503
666,065 528,391
471,811 503,935
30,115,824 24,923,551
1,075,057 819,136
41,367,009 34,392,381
(1,579,695) (561,819)
3,089,080 415,000
1,154,674 528,081
- 3,335
10,317 1,600,000
5,342 16,693
(29,746) (45,334)
(443) -
4,229,224 2,517,775
2,649,529 1,955,956
4,628,539 2,557,794
7,278,068 4,513,750
30,901,441 26,387,691
$ 38,179,509 $ 30,901,441

See accompanying notes to financial statements
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CITY OF OXNARD HOUSING AUTHORITY
Statement of Cash Flows

Year ended June 30, 2024
(With Comparative Totals for June 30, 2023)

2024 2023
Cash flows from operating activities:
Cash received from operating grants $ 33,639,963 $ 27,438,257
Cash received from tenants 5,433,204 5,072,826
Cash received for other activities 931,119 535,152
Cash received for interest on notes receivable 560,458 560,458
Cash receipts/(payments) for notes receivable - 448,525
Cash payments to suppliers for goods and services (4,177,983) (3,261,118)
Cash payments for housing assistance (30,111,509) (24,946,344)
Cash payments to employees for services (5,291,857) (5,361,819)
Net cash provided by operating activities 983,395 485,937
Cash flows from noncapital financing activities:
Principal paid on long-term debt (430,000) (410,000)
Interest and other fees paid (21,285) (41,376)
Cash received from noncapital grants 3,089,080 415,000
Net cash provided by (used for) noncapital financing
activities 2,637,795 (36,376)
Cash flows from capital and related financing activities:
Cash received from capital grants 4,628,539 2,557,794
Gain on acquisition of capital assets 10,317 -
Proceeds from disposal of capital assets - 3,335
Purchases of capital assets (6,891,627) (2,282,492)
Net cash provided by capital and related
financing activities (2,252,771) 278,637
Cash flows from investing activities:
Interest received on investments 1,154,674 528,081
Net cash provided by investing activities 1,154,674 528,081
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 2,523,093 1,256,279
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 20,023,037 18,766,758
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year $ 22,546,130 $ 20,023,037
(Continued)
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CITY OF OXNARD HOUSING AUTHORITY
Statement of Cash Flows (Continued)

Year ended June 30, 2024
(With Comparative Totals for June 30, 2023)

2024 2023
Reconciliation of cash and cash equivalents to
amounts reported on Statement of Net Position:
Reported on Statement of Net Position:
Cash and investments $ 19,221,865 $ 16,990,291
Cash restricted for HAP 136,917 64,423
Cash restricted for security deposits 157,130 152,920
Investments with fiscal agent 708,756 676,685
Restricted investments for FSS and construction 2,321,462 2,138,718
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year per
Statement of Cash Flows $ 22,546,130 $ 20,023,037

Cash flows from operating activities:
Operating income (loss) $ (1,579,695) $ (561,819)
Adjustments to reconcile operating income (loss)
to net cash provided by operating activities:

Depreciation 1,075,057 819,136
Other revenue 4,899 16,693
(Increase) decrease in accounts receivable-HUD (143,728) (781,334)
(Increase) decrease in accounts receivable-tenants (7,018) (13,688)
(Increase) decrease in accounts receivable-other 297,163 (118,304)
(Increase) decrease in other current assets 34,242 (10,794)
(Increase) decrease in notes and interest receivable (115,761) 303,798
(Increase) decrease in deferred outflows 40,413 (1,117,945)
Increase (decrease) in accounts payable and

accrued liabilities 290,427 728,672
Increase (decrease) in salaries and benefits payable 39,384 38,433
Increase (decrease) in unearned revenue 59,951 (58,445)
Increase (decrease) in tenant security deposits payable 18,565 3,330
Increase (decrease) in in-lieu of taxes payable 4,315 (22,793)
Increase (decrease) in compensated absences (3,071) 101,360
Increase (decrease) in FSS liabilities 227,864 72,795
Increase (decrease) in advances from the City 7,981 (118,360)
Increase (decrease) in OPEB liability 1,027,611 (588,288)
Increase (decrease) in net pension liability (142,560) 3,200,115
Increase (decrease) in deferred inflows (152,644) (1,406,625)
Net cash provided by operating activities $ 983,395 $ 485,937

There were no non-cash gains recognized for the year ended June 30, 2024.

See accompanying notes to financial statements
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CITY OF OXNARD HOUSING AUTHORITY
Notes to Basic Financial Statements

Year ended June 30, 2024

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

The basic financial statements of the City of Oxnard Housing Authority (Authority), a
component unit of the City of Oxnard, have been prepared in conformity with generally
accepted accounting principles (GAAP) as applied to government units. The Governmental
Accounting Standards Board (GASB) is the accepted standard setting body for establishing
governmental accounting and financial reporting principles. The more significant accounting
policies of the Authority are described below.

(a)

Reporting Entity

The Authority is a public entity which was organized under the laws of the State of
California’s Health and Safety Code for the purpose of providing safe, decent and
sanitary housing for qualified economically disadvantaged and elderly individuals in
areas where a shortage of such housing exists.

The Authority accomplishes this goal through various programs as follows:

e Low Rent Public Housing (LRPH) — The LRPH operates various housing projects
owned by the Authority. The program is funded by the U.S. Department of
Housing and Urban Development (HUD) through annual contributions contract
SF-195, for notes and bond amortization, and operating subsidies, as well as
modernization grants, which are entitlement grants.

e Housing Choice Vouchers (Section 8) — The Section 8, Housing Choice Voucher
Housing Assistance Program subsidizes, on behalf of tenants, rent payments to
owners of real property within the community. These programs are funded by
HUD through annual contributions contract SF-516.

e Additional Grant Programs — The Authority applies for and receives grants from
HUD for various purposes, in addition to LRPH and Section 8. These grant
programs include Resident Opportunity and Supportive Services, Family Self
Sufficiency and Capital Fund Grants.

e Central Services - This is a hon-HUD program, which owns land, equipment,
and holds investments. Equipment owned by this program is depreciated over
its estimated useful life.

The Authority is an integral part of the reporting entity of the City of Oxnard (City).
Although the Authority is a legally separate entity from the City, its financial operations
are closely related and members of the Oxnard City Council sit on the Board of
Commissioners. As a result, the funds of the Authority have been included within the
scope of the basic financial statements of the City.

Only the fund of the Authority is included herein; therefore, these financial statements
do not purport to represent the financial position or results of operations of the City.
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CITY OF OXNARD HOUSING AUTHORITY

Notes to Basic Financial Statements

(Continued)

The Authority does not have any component units as defined under generally accepted
accounting principles.

Fund Accounting

The basic accounting and reporting entity is a “fund”. A fund is defined as an
independent fiscal and accounting entity with a self-balancing set of accounts,
recording resources, related liabilities, obligations, reserves and equities segregated
for the purpose of carrying out specific activities or attaining certain objectives in
accordance with special regulations, restrictions or limitations. The activity of the
Authority is accounted for in an enterprise fund. Enterprise funds are used to account
for operations (a) that are financed primarily through user charges, or (b) where the
governing body has decided that the determination of net income is appropriate. All
funds of the Authority are enterprise funds and are consolidated and presented as one
fund. All activities accounted for in the enterprise funds are considered business-type
activities.

Measurement Focus and Basis of Accounting

The proprietary fund types are accounted for on an “income determination” or “cost of
services” measurement focus. Accordingly, all assets and liabilities are included on
the statement of net position, and the reported fund equity provides an indication of
the historical net worth of the fund. The statement of revenues, expenses and changes
in net position for proprietary fund types report increases (revenues) and decreases
(expenses) in total historical net worth. Proprietary funds use the accrual basis of
accounting, i.e., revenues are recognized in the period earned and expenses are
recognized in the period incurred.

Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from nonoperating
items. Operating revenues and expenses result from providing goods and services
related to the fund’s ongoing operations. The principal operating revenue of the
Authority’s enterprise funds is dwelling rental income. Operating expenses include the
cost of services provided, administrative expenses and depreciation on capital assets.
All revenues and expenses not meeting this definition are reported as nonoperating
revenues and expenses. When both restricted and unrestricted resources are available
for use, it is the Authority’s policy to use restricted resources first, then unrestricted
as they are needed.

Budgetary Data

The Board of Commissioners approves each year’s budget submitted by the Executive
Director prior to the beginning of the new fiscal year. Supplemental budget revisions,
where required during the period, are also approved by the Board of Commissioners.
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CITY OF OXNARD HOUSING AUTHORITY
Notes to Basic Financial Statements

(Continued)

Cash and Cash Equivalents and Investments

Cash and cash equivalents on the Statement of Net Position include amounts in
demand deposits and saving accounts. Investments are reported in the accompanying
balance sheet at fair value.

Changes in fair value that occur during a fiscal year are recognized as investment
income reported for that fiscal year. Investment income includes interest earnings,
changes in fair value, and any gains or losses realized upon the liquidation, maturity,
or sale of investments.

The Authority pools cash and cash equivalents and investments. Each program’s share
in this pool is displayed in the accompanying financial statements as cash and cash
equivalents and investments. Investment income earned by the pooled investments
is allocated to the various programs based on each program’s average cash and cash
equivalents and investment balances.

For purposes of the Statement of Cash Flows, cash and cash equivalents are defined
as short-term, highly liquid investments that are both readily convertible to known
amounts of cash or so near their maturity that they present insignificant risk of
changes in value because of changes in interest rates. Cash equivalents also have an
original maturity date of three months or less from the date of purchase.

Accounts Receivable

The Authority is on the direct write-off method for uncollectible accounts. During the
year, the Authority wrote off $11,188 of tenants’ receivables.

Accounts Receivable — HUD

The amounts reported as Accounts Receivable — HUD represent amounts earned for
certain HUD funded programs that had not been received as of June 30, 2024.

Allowance for Doubtful Accounts

Accounts receivable - other are stated net of allowance for doubtful accounts.
Included in the Authority’s estimate is an allowance equal to the amount of fraud
recovery related receivables. At June 30, 2024 the total allowance for doubtful
accounts receivable in the Low Rent Public Housing Fund and the Housing Choice
Voucher Fund for accounts receivable - other were $276,827 and $231,326,
respectively.
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CITY OF OXNARD HOUSING AUTHORITY
Notes to Basic Financial Statements

(Continued)

Employee Leave Benefits

Permanent Authority employees earn from 12 to 24 vacation days per year, depending
on their length of employment, and 12 sick days per year. Temporary employees earn
8 vacation days per year for full-time employment. Employees may carry forward up
to twice the number of vacation days earned in the immediately preceding twelve-
month period, and up to 120 days of unused sick leave.

Management level employees earn from 20 to 38 days of annual leave per year,
depending on their length of employment. Management employees may carry twice
their number of annual leave days earned in the immediately preceding twelve-month
period.

In accordance with GASB Statement No. 16, a liability is recorded for unused vacation
and similar compensatory leave balance since the employees’ entitlement to these
balances are attributable to services already rendered and it is probable that virtually
all of these balances will be liquidated by either paid time off or payments upon
termination or retirement.

Under GASB 16, a liability is recorded for unused sick leave balances only to the extent
that it is probable that the unused balances will result in termination payments. This
is estimated by including in the liability the unused balances of employees currently
entitled to receive termination payment, as well as those who are expected to become
eligible to receive termination benefits as a result of continuing their employment with
the Authority. Other amounts of unused sick leave are excluded from the liability since
their payment is contingent solely upon the occurrence of a future event (illness) which
is outside the control of the Authority and the employee.

Upon termination or retirement, permanent employees are entitled to receive
compensation at their current base salary for all unused vacation and annual leave.
Upon retirement or other honorable termination, an employee with a minimum of 5
continuous years of service is entitled to receive 50% of the value of his or her unused
sick leave based on the number of hours accumulated.

Capital Assets

Capital assets are stated at cost or estimated historical cost. Contributed capital assets
are recorded at acquisition value at the time received. Generally, any single item
purchased by the Authority with a cost greater than or equal to $5,000 and an
anticipated useful life of greater than one year is capitalized and depreciated.
Maintenance, minor repairs and replacements are recorded as expenses; extraordinary
replacements of property resulting in property betterment are capitalized.
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(Continued)

Depreciation is charged to operations using the straight-line method based on the
estimated useful life of the related asset. The estimated useful lives of the assets are
as follows:

Years
Buildings 10-30
Furniture, equipment and machinery 3-5

Payment in Lieu of Taxes

As a municipal entity, the Authority is exempt from real and personal taxes and special
assessments levied by any taxing body. Instead, the Authority is required to make
payments to local government entities referred to as Payments in Lieu of Taxes
(PILOT) on certain rental properties owned by the Authority. Under agreements with
the City, the Authority is required to make an annual payment equal to 10% of the
shelter rent charged by the Authority with respect to individual projects. Shelter rent
is the total of all charges to all tenants for dwelling less the cost of utilities. Total
PILOT outstanding as of June 30, 2024 was $37,002.

Net Position

Net position represents the difference between assets plus deferred outflows of
resources, and liabilities plus deferred inflows of resources. Net investment in capital
assets consists of capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation, reduced by the
outstanding balances of any borrowing used for the acquisition, construction, or
improvement of those assets, including the interest due on the borrowing. Net position
is reported as restricted when there are limitations imposed on their use either through
constitutional provisions or enabling legislation or through external restrictions
imposed by creditors, grantors, or laws or regulations of other governments. The
Authority exhausts all restricted resources before the use of unrestricted resources.

Pensions

For purposes of measuring the net pension liability, deferred outflows and inflows of
resources related to pensions, pension expense, information about the fiduciary net
position and additions to/deductions from the fiduciary net position have been
determined on the same basis as they are reported. For this purpose, benefit
payments (including refunds of employee contributions) are recognized when due
and payable in accordance with the benefit terms. Investments are reported at fair
value.

GASB 68 requires that the reported results must pertain to liability and asset

information within certain defined timeframes. For this report, the following
timeframes are used:
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(Continued)

CalPERS

Valuation Date (VD) June 30, 2022

Measurement Date (MD) June 30, 2023

Measurement Period (MP) July 1, 2022 to June 30, 2023
PARS

Valuation Date (VD) June 30, 2023

Measurement Date (MD) June 30, 2024

Measurement Period (MP) July 1, 2023 to June 30, 2024

Other Post-Employment Benefits (OPEB)

For purposes of measuring the total OPEB liability, deferred outflows of resources and
deferred inflows of resources related to OPEB, and OPEB expense have been
determined by an independent actuary. For this purpose, benefit payments are
recognized when currently due and payable in accordance with the benefit terms.

Generally accepted accounting principles require that the reported results must pertain
to liability and fiduciary net position information within certain defined timeframes.
For this report, the following timeframes are used:

OPEB

Valuation Date (VD) July 1, 2022

Measurement Date (MD) June 30, 2023

Measurement Period (MP) July 1, 2022 to June 30, 2023

Fair Value Measurements

Certain assets and liabilities are required to be reported at fair value. The fair value
framework provides a hierarchy that prioritizes the inputs to valuation techniques used
to measure fair value. The hierarchy gives the highest priority to unadjusted quoted
prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities (Level 1 measurements) and
the lowest priority to unobservable inputs (Level 3 measurements). The three levels
of fair value hierarchy are described as follows:

Level 1 - Inputs to the valuation methodology are unadjusted quoted prices for
identical assets or liabilities in active markets.

Level 2 - Inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable

for the asset or liability, either directly or indirectly and fair value is determined using
models or other valuation methodologies including:

e Quoted prices for similar assets or liabilities in active markets;

e Quoted prices for identical or similar assets or liabilities in markets that are
inactive;

e Inputs other than quoted prices that are observable for the asset or liability;
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(Continued)

e Inputs that are derived principally from or corroborated by observable market
data by correlation or other means.

Level 3 - Inputs to the valuation methodology are unobservable and significant to the

fair value measurement. These unobservable inputs reflect the Authority’'s own
assumptions about the inputs market participants would use in pricing the asset or
liability (including assumptions about risk). These unobservable inputs are developed
based on the best information available in the circumstances and may include the
Authority’s own data.

Deferred Outflows and Deferred Inflows of Resources

When applicable, the statement of net position will report a separate section for
deferred outflows of resources. Deferred outflows of resources represent outflows
of resources (consumption of net assets) that apply to future periods and that,
therefore, are not recognized as an expense or expenditure until that time. The
Authority’s actuarially determined pension items and OPEB related items qualify for
reporting in this category.

When applicable, the statement of net position will report a separate section for
deferred inflows of resources. Deferred inflows of resources represent inflows of
resources (acquisition of net assets) that apply to future periods and therefore, are
not recognized as an inflow of resources (revenue) until that time. The Authority’s
actuarially determined pension items and actuarially determined OPEB items qualify
for reporting in this category.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with GAAP requires management
to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and
liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial
statement and the reported amounts of income and expenses during the reporting
period. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

Prior Year Data

Selected information from the prior year has been included in the accompanying
financial statements to provide an understanding of changes in the Authority’s financial
position and operations. This information has been included for comparison purposes
only and does not represent a complete presentation in accordance with GAAP.
Accordingly, such information should be read in conjunction with the Authority’s
financial statements for the year ended June 30, 2023, from which this selected
financial data was derived. Certain minor reclassifications of prior year data have been
made to enhance its comparability with current year figures.
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Cash and Investments

Cash and investments as of June 30, 2024 are presented in the accompanying financial
statements as follows:

Cash and investments - unrestricted $ 19,221,865
Restricted Cash

Cash restricted for HAP 136,917
Cash and investments for security deposits 157,130
Investments with fiscal agent 708,756

Restricted investments for FSS, construction and proceeds 2,321,462
Total $ 22,546,130

Cash and investments held by the Authority as of June 30, 2024 consisted of the following:

Petty cash $ 250
Demand deposits 1,443,490

Total cash and deposits 1,443,740
State of California Local Agency Investment Fund 20,393,634

Money market mutual funds 708,756

Total investments 21,102,390
Total cash and investments $ 22,546,130

Investments Authorized by the California Government Code and the Authority’s Investment
Policy

The table below identifies the investment types that are authorized for the Authority by the
California Government Code and the Authority’s investment policy. The table also identifies
certain provisions of the California Government Code (or the Authority’s investment policy, if
more restrictive) that address interest rate risk, credit risk, and concentration of credit risk.
This table does not address investments of debt proceeds held by bond trustee that are
governed by the provisions of debt agreements of the Authority, rather than the general
provisions of the California Government Code or the Authority’s investment policy.
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Cash and Investments (Continued)

Authorized by * Maximum  * Maximum
Investment Types Investment * Maximum Percentage Investment
Authorized by State Law Policy Maturity Of Portfolio In One Issuer

Local agency bonds No 5 years None None
U.S. Treasury obligations Yes 5 years None None
State obligations - CA and others No 5 years None None
CA local agency obligations No 5 years None None
U.S. agency obligations Yes 5 years None None
Bankers’ acceptances No 180 days 40% 30%
Commercial paper - pooled funds No 270 days 40% 10%
Commercial paper - non-pooled funds No 270 days 25% 10%
Negotiable certificates of deposit Yes 5 years 30% None
Non-negotiable certificates of deposit No 5 years None None
Placement service deposits No 5 years 30% None
Placement service certificates of deposit No 5 years 30% None
Repurchase agreements Yes 1 year None None
Reverse repurchase agreements and

securities lending agreements Yes 92 days 20% None
Medium-term notes No 5 years 30% None
Mutual funds and money market

mutual funds Yes N/A 20% 10%
Collateralized bank deposits Yes 5 years None None
Mortgage pass-through securities No 5 years 20% None
County pooled investment funds Yes N/A None None
Joint powers authority pool No N/A None None
Local Agency Investment Fund (LAIF) Yes N/A None None
Voluntary investment program fund No N/A None None
Supranational obligations No 5 years 30% None

* Based on state law requirements or investment policy requirements, whichever is more

restrictive.

Investments Authorized by Debt Agreements

Investments of debt proceeds held by bond trustee are governed by provisions of the debt
agreements, rather than the general provisions of the California Government Code or the
Authority’s investment policy. The table below identifies the investment types that are
authorized for investments held by bond trustee. The table also identifies certain provisions
of these debt agreements that address interest rate risk, credit risk, and concentration of

credit risk.
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Cash and Investments (Continued)

Maximum Maximum
Authorized Maximum Percentage Investment
Investment Type Maturity Allowed In One Issuer

Government obligations None None None
U.S. agency securities None None None
Bankers' acceptances 360 days None None
Commercial paper 180 days None None
Money market mutual funds None None None
Repurchase agreements 270 days None None
Tax-exempt obligations None None None
Pre-refunded municipal obligations None None None
Investments agreements None None None

Disclosures Relating to Interest Rate Risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that changes in market interest rates will adversely affect the fair
value of an investment. Generally, the longer the maturity of an investment, the greater the
sensitivity its fair value will be to changes in market interest rates.

Information about the sensitivity of the fair values of the Authority’s investments (including
investments held by bond trustee) to market interest rate fluctuations is provided by the
following table that shows the distribution of the Authority’s investments by maturity:

12 Months
Investment Type or Less
LAIF $ 20,393,634
Held by bond trustee:
Money market mutual funds 708,756
Total $ 21,102,390

Disclosures Relating to Credit Risk

Generally, credit risk is the risk that an issuer of an investment will not fulfill its obligation to
the holder of the investment. This is measured by the assignment of a rating by a nationally
recognized statistical rating organization. Presented below is the minimum rating required by
(where applicable) the California Government Code, the Authority’s investment policy, or debt
agreements, and the actual rating as of year-end for each investment type.

25



(2)

CITY OF OXNARD HOUSING AUTHORITY
Notes to Basic Financial Statements

(Continued)

Cash and Investments (Continued)

Minimum Ratings as of Year End
Investment type Amount Legal Rating Aaa Not Rated
LAIF $ 20,393,634 N/A - 20,393,634
Held by bond trustee:
Money market mutual funds 708,756 A 708,756 -
Totals $ 21,102,390 708,756 20,393,634

Concentration of Credit Risk

The investment policy of the Authority contains no limitations on the amount that can be
invested in any one issuer beyond that stipulated by the California Government Code. At
June 30, 2024, the Authority had no investments in any one issuer (other than mutual funds
and external investment pools) that represented 5% or more of total Authority investments.

Custodial Credit Risk

Custodial credit risk for deposits is the risk that, in the event of the failure of a depository
financial institution, a government will not be able to recover its deposits or will not be able
to recover collateral securities that are in the possession of an outside party. The custodial
credit risk for investments is the risk that, in the event of the failure of the counterparty (e.g.,
broker-dealer) to a transaction, a government will not be able to recover the value of its
investment or collateral securities that are in the possession of another party. The California
Government Code and the Authority’s investment policy do not contain legal or policy
requirements that would limit the exposure to custodial credit risk for deposits or investments,
other than the following provision for deposits: The California Government Code requires that
a financial institution secure deposits made by state or local governmental units by pledging
securities in an undivided collateral pool held by a depository regulated under state law
(unless so waived by the governmental unit). The market value of the pledged securities in
the collateral pool must equal at least 110% of the total amount deposited by the public
agencies. California law also allows financial institutions to secure City deposits by pledging
first trust deed mortgage notes having a value of 150% of the secured public deposits.

For investments identified herein as held by bond trustee, the bond trustee selects the

investment under the terms of the applicable trust agreement, acquires the investment, and
holds the investment on behalf of the reporting government.
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Cash and Investments (Continued)

Investment in State Investment Pool

The Authority is a voluntary participant in the Local Agency Investment Fund (LAIF) that is
regulated by the California Government Code under the oversight of the Treasurer of the
State of California. The fair value of the Authority’s investment in this pool is reported in the
accompanying financial statements at amounts based upon the Authority’s pro-rata share of
the fair value provided by LAIF for the entire LAIF portfolio (in relation to the amortized cost
of that portfolio). The balance available for withdrawal is based on the accounting records
maintained by LAIF, which are recorded on an amortized cost basis. LAIF is not subject to the
fair value measurement.

Notes and Interest Receivable

In April 2014, the Authority issued a promissory note of $2,050,000 to Terraza De Las Cortes,
L.P. for certain land the Authority received in a land exchange with the City. The note accrues
interest at a rate of 5% compounded annually on the amount of the outstanding balance of
the loan. Annual payments of 85% of the annual net cash flow of the property are made. All
outstanding principal and accrued interest are payable on or before April 2069. Principal and
interest due to the Authority at June 30, 2024 was $788,787 and $120,531, respectively.

In June 2020, the Authority entered into a note agreement with A0592 Oxnard LP (Developer).
The Authority is to provide up to $2,500,000 in reimbursement for costs associated with
demolition costs of the Los Cortes phase II development. The note accrues interest at a rate
of 3% simple interest per annum. Principal and interest due to the Authority at June 30, 2024
was $2,332,619 and $270,402, respectively.
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A summary of changes in capital assets for the year ended June 30, 2024 is as follows:

Capital assets not being depreciated:
Land
Construction in progress

Total capital assets not being depreciated

Capital assets being depreciated:
Buildings and improvements
Furniture, equipment and machinery

Total capital assets being depreciated

Less accumulated depreciation for:
Buildings and improvements
Furniture, equipment and machinery

Total accumulated depreciation
Total capital assets being depreciated, net

Capital assets, net

Balance at Balance at
July 1, 2023 Additions Deletions June 30, 2024
$ 9,863,482 1,378,794 - 11,242,276

2,805,353 4,324,265 (3,976,464) 3,153,154
12,668,835 5,703,059 (3,976,464) 14,395,430
41,977,386 5,248,064 (1,851,635) 45,373,815

1,982,185 129,708 (101,167) 2,010,726
43,959,571 5,377,772 (1,952,802) 47,384,541
(36,345,572) (995,483) 1,851,635 (35,489,420)
(1,684,529) (79,574) 101,167 (1,662,936)
(38,030,101) (1,075,057) 1,952,802 (37,152,356)

5,929,470 4,302,715 - 10,232,185

$ 18,598,305 10,005,774 (3,976,464) 24,627,615

Depreciation expense for the year ended June 30, 2024 in the amount of $1,075,057 was

charged to the following functions:

Low Rent Public Housing
Housing Choice Vouchers
Central Services

Total
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Changes in Long-Term Liabilities

A summary of changes in long-term liabilities is as follows:

Amount
Amount Due
Balance at Balance at Due Within Beyond

July 1, 2023 Increase Decrease June 30, 2024 One Year One Year

Compensated absences

payable $ 704,707 283,901 (286,972) 701,636 290,041 411,595
Family self-sufficiency

liabilities 497,359 770,739 (542,875) 725,223 445,383 279,840
2004 Capital fund

Revenue bonds 430,000 - (430,000) - - -
Advances from City 671,306 7,981 - 679,287 - 679,287
Note payable -

Oxnard CDC 269,710 - - 269,710 269,710 -

Note Payable -

7th & Meta - 212,740 - 212,740 - 212,740
OPEB liability 2,258,967 1,027,609 - 3,286,576 - 3,286,576
Pension liability 8,621,957 620,592 (763,151) 8,479,398 - 8,479,398
Totals $ 13,454,006 2,923,562 (2,022,998) 14,354,570 1,005,134 13,349,436

(6)

2004 Capital Fund Revenue Bonds

On April 26, 2004, the Affordable Housing Agency issued Affordable Housing Agency
Certificates of Participation, Series 2004 (Oxnard-Santa Clara Projects) in the amount of
$10,370,000, evidencing a proportionate ownership interest in debt service payments to be
made with respect to certain Capital Fund Revenue Bonds, Series 2004, issued by the Oxnard
and Santa Clara Housing Authorities in the amounts of $5,820,000 and $4,550,000,
respectively. Each certificate represents a proportionate ownership interest of the holder in
the right to receive debt service payments made with respect to the bonds. The obligations
of the housing authorities under their respective bond indentures are independent and neither
is obligated for the payment of principal or interest on the bonds of the other housing
authority.

The Oxnard Series 2004 Capital Fund Revenue Bonds were issued to finance certain projects
of the Authority. The bonds are in denominations of $5,000 each and bear interest ranging
from 2.00% to 4.95%. Certificates maturing on or after April 1, 2012 are subject to optional
prepayment from the redemptions of the bonds at the option of the Authority on any date on
or after April 1, 2001 at par plus accrued interest.
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2004 Capital Fund Revenue Bonds (Continued)

HUD has approved the issuance of the bonds and the certificates and has authorized the
Authority to pledge and assign its Capital Fund Program monies to the payment of the bonds
and, therefore, the certificates. During the year, $4,859,354 of Capital Fund Grant revenue
was earned, of which, $430,000 was applied to the repayment of the bonds. Principal is
payable annually on April 1. Interest is payable semiannually on April 1 and October 1
commencing October 1, 2004. The required reserve for the bonds is $451,375. As of June
30, 2024, the bond has been paid in full.

Long Term Liabilities Payable to the City of Oxnard

Advances from the City of Oxnard

Effective July 1, 2001, the Authority entered into a Settlement Agreement with the City that
resolved a dispute regarding the amount of reimbursements the Authority owed to the City
for worker’s compensation claims. Prior to fiscal year 2002, the City administered the
Authority’s workers’ compensation claims. It was agreed that the amount owed by the
Authority for these claims as of June 30, 2001 would be $993,000.

Repayment terms are addressed in section 4(a) of the Settlement Agreement. Beginning July
1, 2001, the Authority is to annually budget $182,000 for the payment of worker’s
compensation insurance. From this annually budgeted amount the Authority is to pay its
worker’s compensation insurance costs and any difference between that amount and the
budgeted amount will be paid to the City. From 2002 through 2024 there have been certain
repayments and additional claims expense that have affected the outstanding balance. No
interest accrued on the outstanding balance. The balance as of June 30, 2024 is $679,287.

City of Oxnard Community Development Commission Note Payable

The Authority entered into a note agreement dated July 21, 2009, secured by a deed of trust,
in the amount of $350,000 payable to the City of Oxnard Community Development
Commission (CDC) to finance the development of affordable housing units on Cuesta del Mar
in the Southwinds Redevelopment Project Area in the City. The principal balance on the note
bears interest at the rate of interest paid by LAIF, plus 1% per annum. Payments are to be
made annually, commencing on January 30 of the year following the issuance of the first
Certificate of Occupancy for the project, and each January 30 thereafter. As of June 30, 2014,
the project was considered permanently stalled and would not be completed. The loan is to
be payable in one lump sum payment due sixty (60) days after the anniversary of the failure
to complete project determination. There is an option to extend the repayment date for a
period not to exceed two years as approved by the CDC’s Director. The outstanding balance
at June 30, 2024 is $269,710.
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Long Term Liabilities Payable to the City of Oxnard (Continued)

City of Oxnard 7t" and Meta Note Payable

The Authority entered into a note agreement dated December 6, 2022, secured by a deed of
trust, in the amount of $212,740 payable to the City of Oxnard to finance the development
of affordable housing units on 4 parcels at 7™ and Meta in the City. The principal balance on
the note bears no interest. The principal of the note shall be automatically forgiven on the
date the property is transferred to an affordable housing developer selected by the Authority
to complete the project, subject to the City’s approval. The outstanding balance at June 30,
2024 is $212,740.

Interprogram Activities

Due to/from other programs:

Due to/from other programs at June 30, 2024 was comprised of the following:

Receivable Program Payable Program Amount
Central Fund Family Self Sufficiency $ 194
Central Fund ROSS 73

Total interprogram activities $ 267

All interprogram receivables and payables represent short-term borrowings to fund current
operations and manage cash flows for grant funds. Included in interprogram receivables and
payables are amounts due to the Central Fund for cash deficits related to personnel services
performed.

Insurance

As of June 30, 2024, the Authority maintains the following levels of insurance coverage:

General Liability:

Automobile liability $1,000,000 per occurrence

Commercial property liability $100,000,000 for various buildings and property
Fidelity/Crime:

Fidelity $250,000 per occurrence
Forgery $250,000 per occurrence
Theft, disappearance and $90,000 limit

destruction

31



(9)

(10)

CITY OF OXNARD HOUSING AUTHORITY
Notes to Basic Financial Statements

(Continued)

Insurance (Continued)

The Authority is insured for workers’ compensation claims through the State Compensation
Insurance Fund. The Authority maintains statutory coverage and is liable for up to
$1,000,000. For the past three years, claim payments have not exceeded the amount of
applicable insurance coverage.

Defined Benefit Pension Plans (CalPERS and PARS)

Employees of the Authority, through the City, are members of the Public Employees’
Retirement System (CalPERS) and the Public Agency Retirement System (PARS), the cost of
which is paid by the Authority. The information below includes the aggregate total pension
related items for both plans.

CalPERS PARS Total
Net pension liability (asset) $ 8,464,257 $ 15,141 ¢$ 8,479,398
Deferred outflows of resources — pension 2,248,284 - 2,248,284
Deferred inflows of resources — pension 36,142 69,833 105,975
Pension expense 1,465,640 11,215 1,476,855

Below are descriptions of each of the retirement plans along with selected information
regarding benefits, contributions, liabilities and actuarial assumptions. For further details
regarding each of these plans, including funding progress, refer to the City’s Annual
Comprehensive Financial Report.

CalPERS

(a) Plan Description

The City contributes to CalPERS, an Agent Multiple-Employer Defined Benefit Pension
Plan, which acts as a common investment and administrative agent for participating
public agencies in the State of California. The City participates in the single employer
plan for Miscellaneous 2% at 55 and 2% at 62, of which the Authority is a participant
through the City. A full description of the pension plan regarding number of employees
covered, benefit provisions, assumptions (for funding, but not accounting purposes),
and membership information are listed in the Plan’s June 30, 2022, Annual Actuarial
Valuation Report (funding valuation). Details of the benefits provided can be obtained
in Appendix B of the actuarial valuation report. This report and CalPERS’ audited
financial statements are publicly available reports that can be obtained at the CalPERS’
website.
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(10) Defined Benefit Pension Plans (CalPERS and PARS) (Continued)

(b) Benefits Provided

CalPERS provides service retirement and disability benefits, annual cost-of-living
adjustments, and death benefits to Plan members, who must be public employees,
and their beneficiaries. Benefits are based on years of credited service, equal to one
year of full-time employment.

The Plan's provisions and benefits in effect at June 30, 2024, are summarized as

follows:
Miscellaneous
Prior to On or After

Hire date 1-Jan-13 1-Jan-13
Benefit formula 2.0% at 55 2.0% at 62
Benefit vesting schedule 5 years of service 5 years of service
Benefit payments monthly for life monthly for life
Retirement age 50 - 67+ 52 - 67+
Monthly benefits, as a %

of eligible compensation 1.43% to 2.42% 1.00% to 2.50%
Required employee

contribution rates 4.15% 4.15%
Required employer

contribution rates 10.10% 10.10%

(c) Contributions

Section 20814(c) of the California Public Employees' Retirement Law requires that the
employer contribution rates for all public employers be determined on an annual basis
by the actuary and shall be effective on July 1 following notice of a change in the rate.
The total plan contributions are determined through the CalPERS annual actuarial
valuation process. The actuarially determined rate is the estimated amount necessary
to finance the costs of benefits earned by employees during the year, with an additional
amount to finance any unfunded accrued liability. The employer is required to
contribute the difference between the actuarially determined rate and the contribution
rate of employees. Employer contribution rates may change if plan contracts are
amended. Payments made by the employer to satisfy contribution requirements that
are identified by the pension plan terms as plan member contribution requirements
are classified as plan member contributions.

For the year ended June 30, 2024, the Authority’s total contributions for the Plan were
$1,010,805.
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Defined Benefit Pension Plans (CalPERS and PARS) (Continued)

(d)

(e)

(f)

Actuarial Methods and Assumptions Used to Determine Total Pension Liability

The June 30, 2022 valuation was rolled forward to determine the June 30, 2023 total
pension liability based on the following actuarial methods and assumptions:

Valuation date June 30, 2022
Measurement date June 30, 2023
Actuarial cost method Entry-Age Actuarial Cost Method
Actuarial assumptions:
Discount rate 6.90%
Inflation 2.50%
Salary increases Varies by Entry Age and Service
Mortality Rate Table! Derived using CalPERS Membership Data for all
Funds
Post Retirement Benefit The lesser of contract COLA or 2.30% until
Increase Purchasing Power Protection Allowance Floor on

Purchasing Power applies, 2.30% thereafter

! The mortality table used was developed based on CalPERS’ specific data. The
probabilities of mortality are based on the 2021 CalPERS Experiences Study for the
period from 2001 to 2019. Pre-retirement and post-retirement mortality rates include
15 years of projected mortality improvements using 80% of scale MP 2020 published
by the Society of Actuaries. For more details on this table, please refer to the CalPERS
Experience Study and Review of Actuarial Assumptions report from November 2022
that can be found on the CalPERS website.

Change of Assumptions

In 2023, there were no changes in assumptions.
Discount Rate

The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability was 6.90 percent. The
projection of cash flows used to determine the discount rate assumed that
contributions from plan members will be made at the current member contribution
rates and that contributions from employers will be made at the statutorily required
rates, actuarially determined. Based on those assumptions, the Plan’s fiduciary net
position was projected to be available to take all projected future benefit payments of
current plan members. Therefore, the long term expected rate of return on plan
investment was applied to all periods of projected benefit payments to determine the
total pension liability.
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(9)

(h)

Long-term Expected Rate of Return

The long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was determined
using a building-block method in which expected future real rates of return (expected
returns, net of pension plan investment expense and inflation) are developed for each

major asset class.

In determining the long-term expected rate of return, CalPERS considered both short-
term and long-term market return expectations as well as the expected pension fund
cash flows. Using historical returns of all the funds’ asset classes, except compound
(geometric) returns were calculated over the next 20 years using a building-block
approach. The expected rate of return was then adjusted to account for assumed
administrative expenses of 10 Basis points. The expected real rate of return by asset

class are as follows:

1 .
Asset Class Assumed asset allocation

Global Equity — Cap-weighted
Global Equity — Non-Cap-weighted
Private Equity

Treasury

Mortgage-back Securities
Investment Grade Corporates
High Yield

Emerging Market Debt
Private Debt

Real Assets

Leverage

Real Return'~
30.00% 4.54%
12.00% 3.84%
13.00% 7.28%
5.00% 0.27%
5.00% 0.50%
10.00% 1.56%
5.00% 2.27%
5.00% 2.48%
5.00% 3.57%
15.00% 3.21%
(5.00%) (0.59%)

1 An expected inflation of 2.30% used for this period.
2 Figures are based on the 2021 Asset Liability Management study.

Allocation of Net Pension Liability and Pension Expense to Individual Employers

The following table shows the Authority’s proportionate share of the net pension

liability over the measurement period:

Increase (Decrease)
Plan Fiduciary Net Pension

Total Pension

Balance at: 6/30/2022 (VD) $28,219,251
Balance at: 6/30/2023 (MD) 30,817,256

Liability Net Position Liability
(a) (b) (a) - (b)
$20,375,598 $ 7,843,653
22,352,999 8,464,257
$ 1,977,401 $ 620,604

Net Changes during 2022-23 $ 2,598,005
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(10) Defined Benefit Pension Plans (CalPERS and PARS) (Continued)

(1)

@)

(k)

The Authority’s net pension liability for the plan is measured as the proportionate share
of the net pension liability. The net pension liability of the plan is measured as of June
30, 2023, and the total pension liability for the plan used to calculate the net pension
liability was determined by an actuarial valuation of June 30, 2022 rolled forward to
June 30, 2023 using standard update procedures.

The Authority’s proportionate share of the net pension liability was based on a
projection of the Authority’s long-term share of contributions to the pension plans
relative to the projected contributions of all participating employers, actuarially
determined. The Agency’s proportionate share of the net pension liability for the plan
as of June 30, 2022 and 2023 was as follows:

Miscellaneous Plan

Proportion - June 30, 2022 4.95%
Proportion - June 30, 2023 5.20%
Change - Increase (Decrease) 0.25%

Sensitivity of the Net Pension Liability to Changes in the Discount Rate

The following presents the net pension liability of the Plan as of the Measurement Date,
calculated using the discount rate of 6.90 percent, as well as what the net pension
liability would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is 1 percentage-point
lower (5.90 percent) or 1 percentage-point higher (7.90 percent) than the current
rate:

Discount Rate Current Discount Rate
- 19% Discount Rate + 1%
(5.90%) (6.90%) (7.90%)
Authority’s proportionate share
of the Net Pension Liability $12,643,153 $ 8,464,257 $ 5,037,192

Subsequent Events

During the time period between the valuation date and the publication of the GASB 68
report, price inflation has been higher than the assumed rate of 2.3% per annum.
Since inflation influences cost of living adjustments for retirees and beneficiaries and
active members pay increases, higher inflation is likely to put at least some upward
pressure on the pension expense and the net pension liability in future valuations. The
actual impact of higher inflation on future valuation results will depend on, among
other factors, how long higher inflation persists. At this time, the long-term price
inflation assumption of 2.3% per annum is appropriate.

Amortization of Deferred Outflows and Deferred Inflows of Resources

Under GASB 68, actuarial gains and losses related to changes in total pension liability
and fiduciary net position are recognized in pension expense systematically over time.
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(10) Defined Benefit Pension Plans (CalPERS and PARS) (Continued)

(M

The first amortized amounts are recognized in pension expense for the year the gain
or loss occurs. The remaining amounts are categorized as deferred inflows and
deferred outflows to be recognized in future pension expense.

The amortization period differs depending on the source of the gain or loss:

Net difference between projected 5 year straight-line amortization
and actual earnings on pension plan
investments

All other amounts Straight-line  amortization @ over the
expected average remaining service lifetime
(EARSL) of all members that are provided
with pensions (active, inactive, and retired)
as of the beginning of the measurement
period

Pension Expense, and Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources Related to Pensions

For the year ended June 30, 2024, the Authority recognized pension expense of
$1,465,640 for the Miscellaneous Plan. At June 30, 2024, the Authority reported
deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to the CalPERS
pension as follows:

Deferred Deferred
Outflows Inflows
of Resources  of Resources
Pension contributions subsequent

to the measurement date $ 151,882 -
Differences between expected and
actual experiences 74,000 (36,142)

Net difference between projected
and actual earnings on pension

plan investments 1,011,597 -
Totals $ 1,237,479 $ (36,142)

The Authority reported $1,010,805 as deferred outflows of resources related to
contributions subsequent to the measurement date that will be recognized as a
reduction of the net pension liability in the fiscal year ended June 30, 2024. Amounts
reported as deferred inflows or outflows of resources related to pensions will be
recognized as pension expense as follows:
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PARS

(a)

(b)

(c)

Deferred
Fiscal Year Outflows/(Inflows)
Ended June 30: of Resources
2024 $345,065
2025 124,724
2026 704,540
2027 27,008
2028 -
Thereafter -

Plan Description

The City established a PARS Retirement Enhancement Plan, an agent multiple-
employer plan, effective January 1, 2003 for selected groups of miscellaneous
employees (non-safety), Service Employees International Union (SEIU), International
Union of Operating Engineers (IUOE), Management, and one of the two groups of
Confidential employees. PARS is a defined benefit 401(a) tax-qualified multiple agency
trust. It meets the requirements of a pension trust under California Government code.

The plan provides supplemental retirement benefits in addition to PERS. Prior to June
30, 2019, Phase II Systems was the PARS Trust Administrator. Effective July 1, 2019
Matrix Trust Company became the Successor Trustee and Mass Mutual became the
plan administrator.

Benefits Provided

For employees meeting the eligibility requirements, the plan provides a benefit equal
to the “3% at 60" plan factor (formula is a static 3% at age 60 and older), less the
PERS “2% at 55” plan factors for all years of City service plus any military service
purchased through PERS (prior to July 1, 2003) while an employee of the City.
Eligibility for an immediate benefit is defined as reaching age 50, completing five years
of City service, and retiring concurrently from both the City and PERS after leaving
City employment. In addition, a deferred benefit would be available to participants
who complete five years of service. The City has full discretionary authority to control,
amend, modify or terminate this plan at any time.

Contributions

Employees and the City contribute a total of 8% of eligible employees’ gross wages.
Current employee and City contributions by employee groups are as follows:

38



(10)

CITY OF OXNARD HOUSING AUTHORITY
Notes to Basic Financial Statements

(Continued)

Defined Benefit Pension Plans (CalPERS and PARS) (Continued)

(d)

(e)

(f)

City Employee
Contributions Contributions
IUOE 2.70% 5.30%
SEIU 3.50% 4.50%
Management and confidential 3.00% 5.00%

In addition, the City is required to contribute the remaining amounts necessary to fund
the benefit to its members using the actuarial basis recommended by PARS actuarial
consultants. The actuarially determined contribution for the fiscal year ended June 30,
2019, was 11 percent of eligible employee gross wages. During the fiscal year ended
June 30, 2024, the Authority contributed $268,898 to PARS.

Actuarial Methods and Assumptions Used to Determine Total Pension Liability

The June 30, 2023 total pension liabilities were based on the following actuarial
methods and assumptions:

Valuation date June 30, 2023
Measurement date June 30, 2024
Actuarial cost method Entry Age Normal, level percentage of payroll
Actuarial assumptions:
Discount rate 5.75%
General inflation 2.50% annually

Mortality, retirement,
disability termination  CalPERS 2000-2019 Experience Study
Salary increases Aggregate 2.75% annually
Mortality improvement  Post-retirement mortality projected fully
generational with Scale MP-2021

Discount Rate

The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability for the Plan was 5.75%.
The pension trust is projected to have sufficient assets to pay benefits per the Plan’s
current contribution policy. The long-term expected rate of return on pension plan
investment was based on an assumed long-term asset allocation of 60% equities, 35%
fixed and 5% cash.

Allocation of Net Pension Liability and Pension Expense to Individual Employers

The following table shows the Authority’s proportionate share of the net pension
liability over the measurement period:
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(9)

(h)

Increase (Decrease)

Total Pension Plan Fiduciary Net Pension
Liability Net Position  Liability (Asset)
(a) (b) (a) - (b)
Balance at: 6/30/2023 (VD) $ 7,864,625 ¢ 7,086,319 $ 778,306
Balance at: 6/30/2024 (MD) 2,341,820 2,326,679 15,141

Net Changes during 2023-24 $ (5,522,805) $ (4,759,640) $ (763,165)

The Authority’s net pension liability for the plan is measured as the proportionate share
of the net pension liability. The net pension liability of the plan is measured as of June
30, 2024, and the total pension liability for the plan used to calculate the net pension
liability was determined by an actuarial valuation of June 30, 2023. The Authority’s
proportion of the net pension liability was based on a projection of the Authority’s long-
term share of contributions to the pension plans relative to the projected contributions
of all participating employers, actuarially determined.

The Agency’s proportionate share of the net pension liability for the plan as of June
30, 2023 and 2024 was as follows:

PARS Plan
Proportion - June 30, 2023 6.76%
Proportion - June 30, 2024 2.00%
Change - Increase (Decrease) (4.76%)

Sensitivity of the Net Pension Liability to Changes in the Discount Rate

The following presents the net pension liability of the Plan as of the Measurement Date,
calculated using the discount rate of 5.75 percent, as well as what the net pension
liability would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is 1 percentage-point
lower (4.75 percent) or 1 percentage-point higher (6.75 percent) than the current
rate:

Discount Current Discount
Rate - 1% Discount Rate + 1%
(4.75%) Rate (6.75%)

Authority’s proportionate share
of the Net Pension Liability (Asset) ¢ 285,437 $ 15,141 $ (211,161)

Amortization of Deferred Outflows and Deferred Inflows of Resources

Under GASB 68, actuarial gains and losses related to changes in total pension liability
and fiduciary net position are recognized in pension expense systematically over time.
The first amortized amounts are recognized in pension expense for the year the gain
or loss occurs. The remaining amounts are categorized as deferred inflows and
deferred outflows to be recognized in future pension expense.
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The amortization period differs depending on the source of the gain or loss:

Net difference between projected 5 year straight-line amortization
and actual earnings on pension
plan investments

All other amounts Straight-line amortization over the
expected average remaining service
lifetime (EARSL) of all members that are
provided with pensions (active, inactive,
and retired) as of the beginning of the
measurement period

() Pension Expense and Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources Related to Pension

For the year ended June 30, 2024, the Authority recognized pension expense of
$11,215 for the PARS Plan. At June 30, 2024, the Authority reported deferred outflows
of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to the PARS pension as follows:

Deferred Outflows Deferred Inflows
of Resources of Resources

Changes in assumptions $ - $ (23,038)
Differences between
expected and actual
experiences - -
Net difference between
projected and actual
earnings on pension plan
investments - (46,795)

Totals $ - $ (69,833)

Amounts reported as deferred outflows or inflows of resources related to pensions will
be recognized as pension expense as follows:
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Deferred
Fiscal Year Outflows/(Inflows)
Ended June 30: of Resources
2025 $ (39,077)
2026 33,350
2027 (38,159)
2028 (25,947)
2029 -
Thereafter -

Other Post-Employment Benefits (OPEB)

Plan Description and Benefits Provided

Employees of the Authority, through the City, participate in the CalPERS medical program,
which is a cost-sharing multiple employer defined benefit health care plan administered by
CALPERS. Employees who retire from the City and receive a CalPERS pension are eligible for
post-employment medical benefits. Retirees can enroll in any of the available CalPERS
medical plans. Benefits are paid for the lifetime of the retiree, spouse, surviving spouse, and
dependents up to the age of 26. Benefit provisions for CalPERS are established by the Public
Employees Retirement Law (Part 3 of the California Government Code, Section 20000 et seq.).

At June 30, 2024, membership consisted of the following:

Inactive plan members or
beneficiaries currently receiving

benefit payments 9
Active plan members 52
Total — 61

Contributions

The City contributes the minimum amount allowed under Government Code Section 22825 of
the Public Employees Medical and Hospital Care Act. The required contribution is based on
pay-as-you-go financing requirements. Retirees must contribute any premium amounts in
excess of the City Contribution.

Actuarial Methods and Assumptions Used to Determine Total OPEB Liability

The Authority’s total OPEB Liability was measured as of June 30, 2023 and was determined
by an actuarial valuation as of July 1, 2022 (June 30, 2022).
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The total OPEB liability was determined using the following actuarial assumptions, applied to
all periods included in the measurement, unless otherwise specified:

Actuarial cost method Entry Age, Level Percent of Pay
Salary increases 2.80 percent
Inflation rate 2.30 percent

Healthcare cost trend rate 5.00 percent for 2022-2023;
5.00 percent for 2024-2069;
and 4.00 percent for 2070 and
later years; Medicare ages:
4.00 percent for all years.

Pre-retirement mortality rates were based on the CalPERS Pre-Retirement Mortality
Miscellaneous and Schools (2021) rates for miscellaneous and CalPERS Pre-Retirement
Mortality Safety (2021) rates for safety employees. Post-retirement mortality rates were
based on the CalPERS Post-Retirement Mortality Miscellaneous and Schools (2021) rates for
miscellaneous and CalPERS Post-Retirement Mortality Safety (2021) rates for safety
employees.

Actuarial assumptions used in the July 1, 2022 valuation were based on a review of plan
experience during the period July 1, 2020 to June 30, 2022.

Discount Rate

For OPEB Plans that are not administered through trusts that meet the criteria in paragraph
4, GASB 75 requires a discount rate that is a yield or index rate for 20-year, tax-exempt
general obligation municipal bonds with an average rating of AA/Aa or higher. The discount
rate used to measure the Authority’s total OPEB liability is based on these requirements and
the following information:

Long-Term Expected Fidelity GO AA 20-

Measurement Return of Plan Year Municipal

Date Investments (if any) Index Discount Rate
June 30, 2022 4.00% 3.69% 3.69%
June 30, 2023 4.00% 3.86% 3.86%

Allocation of Total OPEB Liability and OPEB Expense to Individual Employers

The following table shows the Authority’s proportionate share of the total OPEB liability over
the measurement period:
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Increase (Decrease)
Total OPEB Liability

Balance at June 30, 2022 $ 2,258,965
Balance at June 30, 2023 3,286,576
Net changes during year ended June 30, 2023 $ (1,027,611)

The Authority’s total OPEB liability for the plan is measured as the proportionate share of the
plan’s total OPEB liability. The total OPEB liability of the plan is measured as of June 30,
2023, and the total OPEB liability for the plan used to calculate the net pension liability was
determined by an actuarial valuation of June 30, 2022. The Authority’s proportion of the total
OPEB liability was based on a projection of the Authority’s long-term share of contributions to
the OPEB plan relative to the projected contributions of all participating employers, actuarially
determined. The Authority’s proportionate share of the total OPEB liability for the plan as of
June 30, 2022 and 2023 was as follows:

OPEB Plan
Proportion - June 30, 2022 4.61%
Proportion - June 30, 2023 4.61%
Change - Increase (Decrease) (0.00%)

Sensitivity of the Total OPEB Liability to Changes in the Discount Rate

The following presents the total OPEB liability of the Plan as of the Measurement Date,
calculated using the discount rate of 3.86 percent, as well as what the total OPEB liability
would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is 1 percentage-point lower (2.86
percent) or 1 percentage-point higher (4.86 percent) than the current rate:

1% Current 1%
Decrease Discount Rate Increase
(2.86%) (3.86%) (4.86%)
Authority’s proportionate share
of the total OPEB Liability $ 3,914,244 $ 3,286,576 $ 2,792,872

Sensitivity of the Total OPEB liability to Changes in the Healthcare Cost Trend Rates

The following presents the total OPEB liability, as well as what the total OPEB liability would
be if it were calculated using healthcare cost trend rates that are 1-percentage-point lower or
1-percentage-point higher than the current healthcare cost trend rates:

1% Current 1%
Decrease Trend Rate Increase
Authority’s proportionate share
of the total OPEB liability $ 2,717,442 $ 3,286,576 $ 4,039,147
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OPEB Expense and Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources Related to OPEB

For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2024, the Authority recognized OPEB expense of $329,545.
At June 30, 2024, the Authority reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows
of resources related to the OPEB plan as follows:

Deferred Outflows Deferred Inflows

of Resources of Resources
OPEB contributions subsequent
to the measurement date $ 73,881 -
Changes in assumptions 990,980 (603,340)
Differences between expected
and actual experiences 208,300 (70,285)
Totals $ 1,273,161 $ (673,625)

The Authority reported $73,881 as deferred outflows of resources related to contributions
subsequent to the measurement date that will be recognized as a reduction of the total OPEB
liability in the fiscal year ended June 30, 2024. Amounts reported as deferred outflows or
inflows of resources related to pensions will be recognized as pension expense as follows:

Deferred
Fiscal Year Outflows/(Inflows)
Ended June 30: of Resources
2025 $ 79,921
2026 79,921
2027 90,687
2028 48,173
2029 13,844
Thereafter 213,109
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CITY OF OXNARD HOUSING AUTHORITY
Notes to Basic Financial Statements

(Continued)

Conduit Debt Financings

The Authority is associated with the issuance of the following tax-exempt and Multifamily
Mortgage Revenue Note (Note) that were issued to finance various developments. In the
opinion of Authority officials, these debt issuances are not and will never become general
obligations of the issuer, but are limited obligations of the issuer and are payable solely from
the sources set forth in the debt documents. These debt instruments do not and never shall
constitute a debt or indebtedness or an obligation of the issuer or the State of California
(State) or any other political subdivision of the State or a loan of the faith or credit or the
taxing power of any of them. These debt instruments shall not be payable from the general
revenues of the issuer and in no event shall the Bonds be payable out of any funds or
properties other than those specifically pledged. The Authority, as issuer, has no repayment
obligation and, therefore, has not reflected any liability in these financial statements. As of
June 30, 2024, the outstanding balances of these debt issuances are as follows:

Final Outstanding

Issue Maturity Amount Balance at

Description Date Date of Issue 30-Jun-24

Las Villas de Paseo Nuevo Note 2012 2044 $14,000,000 14,000,000
Totals $14,000,000 14,000,000

Las Villas de Paseo Nuevo Note

In February 2012, a $14,000,000 Multifamily Mortgage Revenue Note was issued for the
benefit of Paseo Nuevo Partners, LP, a California limited partnership. Paseo Nuevo Partners,
LP was formed on February 1, 2012 to acquire and construct a 72-unit multifamily housing
development located in Oxnard, known as Las Villas de Paseo Nuevo. This project is intended
to be rented to low-income tenants and will be operated in a manner necessary to qualify for
federal low-income housing tax credits as provided in Section 42 of the Internal Revenue
Code.

Related Party Transactions

The Authority entered into an agreement with the City effective June 1, 2005 for use of the
Multi-Service Center Building. The agreement was most recently amended on June 30, 2022.
Under the terms of the amended agreement, the Authority agrees to pay the City rent at an
annual rate of $1 through June 30, 2024.

Administrative Services Provided by City

The City provides certain services to the Authority and will invoice the Authority monthly for
these services. These monthly invoices include reimbursements for liability insurance, and
other indirect charges for accounting and legal services. The monthly charges from the City
are approximately $13,600.
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CITY OF OXNARD HOUSING AUTHORITY
Notes to Basic Financial Statements

(Continued)

Related Party Transactions (Continued)

Operating Subsidy from City

During the year ended June 30, 2024, the Authority received an operating subsidy in the
amount of $95,000 from the City.

Contingent Liabilities

The Authority is a defendant in certain legal actions arising in the normal course of operations.
It is management’s opinion that these actions will not have a material adverse effect on the
Authority’s financial position.

The Authority has received funds from various federal, state, and local grant programs. It is
possible that at some future date it may be determined that the Authority was not in
compliance with applicable grant requirements. The amount, if any, of expenditures that may
be disallowed by the granting agencies, cannot be determined at this time although
management does not expect such disallowed amounts, if any, to materially affect the
financial statements.

Limited Partnership Agreements

Paseo Nuevo Partners, L.P.

On February 1, 2012, an Amended and Restated Agreement of Limited Partnership of Paseo
Nuevo Partners, L.P. (Partnership) was entered into to construct and manage a 72-unit
multifamily apartment complex for persons of low income, known as the Las Villas de Paseo
Nuevo Affordable Housing Project (Project). The Project qualifies for federal low-income
housing tax credits. The General Partner’s percentage of interest in profits, losses and credits
is 1% and, per Agreement, the General Partner consists of two Co-General Partners. One of
the Co-General Partners is Paseo COGP LLC, a single purpose LLC, of which the Authority is a
66.67% member. Paseo COGP LLC has a 75% interest in the General Partner share. The
remaining 25% General Partner interest is with Las Cortes, Inc. Las Cortes, Inc. is also the
Managing General Partner.

As set forth in the Agreement, the Managing General Partner will manage and control the
business of the Partnership and use its best efforts to carry out the purpose of the Partnership.
The Authority does not have a material equity interest in this Partnership that is reflected as
an asset in the accompanying statement of net position.
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CITY OF OXNARD HOUSING AUTHORITY
Notes to Basic Financial Statements

(Continued)

Limited Partnership Agreements (Continued)

Terraza de las Cortes, L.P.

On November 27, 2012, an Agreement of Limited Partnership of Terraza de las Cortes, L.P.
(Partnership) was entered into by Las Cortes, Inc., a California nonprofit public benefit
corporation (General Partner), and the Authority (Limited Partner). The purpose of the
Partnership is to develop certain real property into a 64-unit apartment complex to be used
as rental housing for low and very low-income individuals. The percentage interests in the
capital, profits, losses and distributions of the Partnership are 0.01% for the General Partner
and 99.99% for the Limited Partner.

On April 30, 2014, an Amended and Restated Agreement of Limited Partnership was entered
by the Authority transferring the 99.99% limited partnership interests to Hudson SLP LLC and
Hudson Terraza LP. The Authority’s role and interest was changed to that of an Administrative
General Partner with a 0.005% interest. Las Cortes, Inc. became the Managing General
Partner.

The General Partners have exclusive and complete management and control of the business
of the Partnership, including the power to delegate duties and responsibilities, to sign
contracts and leases, and to make all decisions in connection with the Partnership. The
Authority does not have a material equity interest in this Partnership that is reflected as an
asset in the accompanying statement of net position.
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CITY OF OXNARD HOUSING AUTHORITY
CALPERS
Schedule of the Authority's Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability
Last 10 Fiscal Years*

June 30, June 30, June 30, June 30, June 30,
Measurement Date 2023 2022 2021 2020 2019
Proportion of the Collective Net Pension
Liability 5.20% 4.95% 5.10% 6.11% 5.95%
Proportionate Share of the Collective Net
Pension Liability $ 8,464,257 7,843,653 4,300,494 8,698,014 7,837,014
Covered Payroll 3,263,331 2,838,065 2,999,845 3,235,289 3,386,564
Proportionate Share of the Collective Net
Pension Liability as percentage of covered
payroll 259.37% 276.37% 143.36% 268.85% 231.41%
Plan Fiduciary Net Position as a Percentage
of the Total Pension Liability 72.53% 72.20% 84.31% 72.60% 73.70%

Notes to Schedule:

Changes of Benefit Terms: The figures above generally include any liability impact that may have resulted
from voluntary benefit changes that occurred on or before the Measurement Date. However, offers of Two Years
Additional Service Credit (a.k.a. Golden Handshakes) that occurred after the Valuation Date are not included in
the figures above, unless the liability impact is deemed to be material by the plan actuary.

Changes of Assumptions: There were no assumption changes in 2023. Effective with the June 30, 2021
valuation date (2022 measurement date), the accounting discount rate was reduced from 7.15% to 6.90%. In
determining the long-term expected rate of return, CalPERS took into account long-term market return
expectations as well as the expected pension fund cash flows. Projected returns for all asset classes are
estimated, combined with risk estimates, and are used to project compound (geometric) returns over the long
term. The discount rate used to discount liabilities was informed by the long-term projected portfolio return. In
addition, demographic assumptions and the inflation rate assumption were changed in accordance with the 2021
CalPERS Experience Study and Review of Actuarial Assumptions. The accounting discount rate was 7.15% for
measurement dates 2017 through 2021, 7.65% for measurement dates 2015 through 2016, and 7.50% for
measurement date 2014.
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CITY OF OXNARD HOUSING AUTHORITY
CALPERS
Schedule of the Authority's Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability
Last 10 Fiscal Years
(Continued)

June 30, June 30, June 30, June 30, June 30,
Measurement Date 2018 2017 2016 2015 2014
Proportion of the Collective Net Pension
Liability 6.17% 5.92% 5.82% 5.71% 6.76%
Proportionate Share of the Collective Net
Pension Liability $ 7,404,176 7,283,238 6,512,734 4,806,596 5,319,550
Covered Payroll 3,103,117 2,817,877 2,804,002 2,967,729 3,438,339
Proportionate Share of the Collective Net
Pension Liability as percentage of covered
payroll 238.60% 258.47% 232.27% 161.96% 154.71%
Plan Fiduciary Net Position as a Percentage
of the Total Pension Liability 74.70% 73.27% 73.56% 79.12% 80.43%

Notes to Schedule:

Changes of Benefit Terms: The figures above generally include any liability impact that may have resulted
from voluntary benefit changes that occurred on or before the Measurement Date. However, offers of Two Years
Additional Service Credit (a.k.a. Golden Handshakes) that occurred after the Valuation Date are not included in
the figures above, unless the liability impact is deemed to be material by the plan actuary.

Changes of Assumptions: There were no assumption changes in 2023. Effective with the June 30, 2021
valuation date (2022 measurement date), the accounting discount rate was reduced from 7.15% to 6.90%. In
determining the long-term expected rate of return, CalPERS took into account long-term market return
expectations as well as the expected pension fund cash flows. Projected returns for all asset classes are
estimated, combined with risk estimates, and are used to project compound (geometric) returns over the long
term. The discount rate used to discount liabilities was informed by the long-term projected portfolio return. In
addition, demographic assumptions and the inflation rate assumption were changed in accordance with the 2021
CalPERS Experience Study and Review of Actuarial Assumptions. The accounting discount rate was 7.15% for
measurement dates 2017 through 2021, 7.65% for measurement dates 2015 through 2016, and 7.50% for
measurement date 2014.
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CITY OF OXNARD HOUSING AUTHORITY
CALPERS
Schedule of Plan Contributions
Last 10 Fiscal Years

Fiscal Year Fiscal Year Fiscal Year Fiscal Year Fiscal Year

2023-24 2022-23 2021-22 2020-21 2019-20
Actuarially Determined Contribution $ 1,010,805 916,455 848,100 833,969 791,720
Contributions in Relation to the Actuarially
Determined Contribution (1,010,805) (916,455) (848,100) (833,969) (791,720)
Contribution Deficiency (Excess) $ - - - - -
Covered Payroll $ 3,263,331 2,838,065 2,883,832 2,999,845 3,235,289
Contributions as a Percentage of Covered
Payroll 30.97% 32.29% 29.41% 27.80% 24.47%

Notes to Schedule:

The actuarial methods and assumptions used to set the actuarially determined contributions were derived from
the June 30, 2020 funding valuation report.

Actuarial Cost Method Entry Age Actuarial Cost Method

Amortization Method/Period For details, see June 30, 2020 Funding Valuation Report.

Asset Valuation Method Fair Value of Assets. For details, see June 30, 2020 Funding Valuation
Report.

Inflation 2.50%

Salary Increases Varies by entry age and service

Payroll Growth 2.75%

Investment Rate of Return 7.00% net of pension plan investment and administrative expenses;
includes inflation.

Retirement Age The probabilities of retirement are based on the 2017 CalPERS
Experience Study for the period from 1997 to 2015.

Mortality The probabilities of mortality are based on the 2017 CalPERS

Experience Study for the period from 1997 to 2015. Pre-retirement and
post-retirement mortality rates include 15 years of projected mortality
improvement using 90% of Scale MP-2016 published by the Society of
Actuaries.
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CITY OF OXNARD HOUSING AUTHORITY

Actuarially Determined Contribution

Contributions in Relation to the Actuarially

Determined Contribution
Contribution Deficiency (Excess)

Covered Payroll

Contributions as a Percentage of Covered
Payroll

Notes to Schedule:

CALPERS

Schedule of Plan Contributions

Last 10 Fiscal Years
(Continued)

Fiscal Year Fiscal Year Fiscal Year Fiscal Year Fiscal Year

2018-19 2017-18 2016-17 2015-16 2014-15
$ 708,257 ¢ 221,859 640,085 617,814 410,737
(708,257) (221,859) (640,085) (617,814) (410,737)
$ - $ - - - -
$ 3,386,564 3,103,117 2,817,877 2,804,002 2,967,729
20.91% 7.15% 22.72% 22.03% 13.84%

The actuarial methods and assumptions used to set the actuarially determined contributions were derived from
the June 30, 2020 funding valuation report.

Actuarial Cost Method
Amortization Method/Period
Asset Valuation Method

Inflation

Salary Increases

Payroll Growth
Investment Rate of Return

Retirement Age

Mortality

Entry Age Actuarial Cost Method

For details, see June 30, 2020 Funding Valuation Report.

Fair Value of Assets. For details, see June 30, 2020 Funding Valuation
Report.

2.50%

Varies by entry age and service

2.75%

7.00% net of pension plan investment and administrative expenses;
includes inflation.

The probabilities of retirement are based on the 2017 CalPERS
Experience Study for the period from 1997 to 2015.

The probabilities of mortality are based on the 2017 CalPERS
Experience Study for the period from 1997 to 2015. Pre-retirement and
post-retirement mortality rates include 15 years of projected mortality
improvement using 90% of Scale MP-2016 published by the Society of
Actuaries.
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CITY OF OXNARD HOUSING AUTHORITY
PARS
Schedule of the Authority's Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability
Last 10 Fiscal Years

June 30, June 30, June 30, June 30, June 30,
Measurement Date 2024 2023 2022 2021 2020
Proportion of the Collective Net Pension
Liability 2.00% 6.76% 6.93% 3.89% 7.99%
Proportionate Share of the Collective Net
Pension Liability $ 15,141 778,306 1,121,349 (40,266) 879,256
Covered Payroll 377,107 1,432,779 1,571,253 1,867,935 1,981,813
Proportionate Share of the Collective Net
Pension Liability as percentage of covered
payroll 4.02% 54.32% 71.37% -2.16% 44.37%
Plan Fiduciary Net Position as a Percentage
of the Total Pension Liability 99.35% 90.10% 85.63% 100.96% 89.03%

Notes to Schedule:

Changes of Benefit Terms: There were no changes to benefit terms that applied to all members of the Public
Agency Pool.

Changes of Assumptions: In 2022, demographic assumptions were updated to reflect a newer CalPERs
Experience Study and Mortality Improvement Scale was updated to Scale MP-2021. In 2021, the discount rate
was changed from 6.25% to 5.75% and general inflation was lowered from 2.75% to 2.50%. In 2020, Matrix
Trust Company became the Successor Trustee and Mass Mutual became the plan administrator and a
measurement date of June 30, 2020 was used in the calculation. In 2018, there were no changes in
assumptions. In 2017, CalPERS Experience Study demographic assumptions updated to 1997-2015 from 1997-
2011, mortality improvement updated from a modified MP-2014 to MP-2017, and inflation assumption
decreased from 3% to 2.75%. In 2016, there were no changes of assumptions. In 2015, the discount rate was
changed from 7.5 percent (net of administrative expense) to 7.65 percent to correct for an adjustment to
exclude administrative expense.
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CITY OF OXNARD HOUSING AUTHORITY
PARS
Schedule of the Authority's Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability
Last 10 Fiscal Years
(Continued)

June 30, June 30, June 30, June 30, June 30,
Measurement Date 2018 2017 2016 2015 2014
Proportion of the Collective Net Pension
Liability 7.99% 7.53% 6.79% 6.38% 6.39%
Proportionate Share of the Collective Net
Pension Liability $ 1,320,731 1,593,539 2,200,417 2,183,908 2,019,150
Covered Payroll 1,975,982 1,889,043 2,111,005 2,329,937 1,990,982
Proportionate Share of the Collective Net
Pension Liability as percentage of covered
payroll 66.84% 84.36% 104.24% 93.73% 101.41%
Plan Fiduciary Net Position as a Percentage
of the Total Pension Liability 82.39% 76.70% 64.60% 61.09% 62.02%

Notes to Schedule:

Changes of Benefit Terms: There were no changes to benefit terms that applied to all members of the Public
Agency Pool.

Changes of Assumptions: In 2022, demographic assumptions were updated to reflect a newer CalPERs
Experience Study and Mortality Improvement Scale was updated to Scale MP-2021. In 2021, the discount rate
was changed from 6.25% to 5.75% and general inflation was lowered from 2.75% to 2.50%. In 2020, Matrix
Trust Company became the Successor Trustee and Mass Mutual became the plan administrator and a
measurement date of June 30, 2020 was used in the calculation. In 2018, there were no changes in
assumptions. In 2017, CalPERS Experience Study demographic assumptions updated to 1997-2015 from 1997-
2011, mortality improvement updated from a modified MP-2014 to MP-2017, and inflation assumption decreased
from 3% to 2.75%. In 2016, there were no changes of assumptions. In 2015, the discount rate was changed
from 7.5 percent (net of administrative expense) to 7.65 percent to correct for an adjustment to exclude
administrative expense.
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Actuarially Determined Contribution

Contributions in Relation to the Actuarially

Determined Contribution

Contribution Deficiency (Excess)

Covered Payroll

Contributions as a Percentage of Covered

Payroll

Notes to Schedule:

Valuation Date
Actuarial Cost Method
Amortization Method
Amortization Period
Asset Valuation Method
Discount Rate

General Inflation
Salary Increases

Mortality
Mortality Improvement

CITY OF OXNARD HOUSING AUTHORITY
PARS
Schedule of Plan Contributions
Last 10 Fiscal Years

Fiscal Year Fiscal Year Fiscal Year Fiscal Year Fiscal Year
2023-24 2022-23 2021-22 2020-21 2019-20
$ 268,898 225,758 256,883 326,068 341,359
(268,898) (225,758) (256,883) (326,068) (341,359)
$ - - - - -
$ 377,107 1,432,779 1,424,569 1,571,253 1,867,935
71.31% 15.76% 18.03% 20.75% 18.27%

June 30, 2021

Entry Age Normal, Level % of pay

Level dollar

Approximately 2.2 year remaining for 2023/24

Investment gains and losses spread over 5-year rolling period.

5.75%

2.50%

Aggregate - 2.75% annually

Merit - CalPERS 2000-2019 Experience Study
CalPERS 2000-2019 Experience Study

Mortality projected fully generational with Scale MP-2021
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Actuarially Determined Contribution

Contributions in Relation to the
Actuarially Determined Contribution

Contribution Deficiency (Excess)

Covered Payroll

Contributions as a Percentage of
Covered Payroll

Notes to Schedule:

Valuation Date
Actuarial Cost Method
Amortization Method
Amortization Period
Asset Valuation Method
Discount Rate

General Inflation
Salary Increases

Mortality
Mortality Improvement

CITY OF OXNARD HOUSING AUTHORITY
PARS
Schedule of Plan Contributions
Last 10 Fiscal Years

(Continued)
Fiscal Year Fiscal Year Fiscal Year Fiscal Year Fiscal Year
2018-19 2017-18 2016-17 2015-16 2014-15

$ 319,943 323,198 167,540 307,823 63,889
(319,943) (323,198) (167,540) (307,823) (63,889)

$ - - - - -
$ 1,981,813 1,975,982 1,889,043 2,111,005 2,329,937
16.14% 16.36% 8.87% 14.58% 2.74%

June 30, 2021

Entry Age Normal, Level % of pay

Level dollar

Approximately 3.2 year remaining for 2022/23
Investment gains and losses spread over 5-year rolling period.
5.75%

2.50%

Aggregate - 2.75% annually

Merit - CalPERS 2000-2019 Experience Study

CalPERS 2000-2019 Experience Study

Mortality projected fully generational with Scale MP-2021
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CITY OF OXNARD HOUSING AUTHORITY
OPEB
Schedule of the Authority's Proportionate Share of the Total OPEB Liability
Last 10 Fiscal Years*

Measurement Date 6/30/2023 6/30/2022 6/30/2021
Proportion of the Collective Total OPEB

Liability 4.61% 4.61% 4.61%
Proportionate Share of the Collective

Total OPEB Liability $ 3,286,576 2,258,965 2,847,253
Covered - Employee Payroll 4,908,754 4,548,948 4,326,360

Proportionate Share of the Collective
Total OPEB Liability as Percentage of
Covered — Employee Payraoll 66.95% 49.66% 65.81%

Plan Fiduciary Net Position as a
Percentage of the Total OPEB Liability 0.00% 0.00% 0.00%

Notes to Schedule:

Change in Benefit Terms: None

Changes of Assumptions: The discount rate and payroll increases were changed from
3.69% to 3.86% and 3.00% to 2.80%, respectively. The healthcare Trend Rates were
updated to reflect 2024 survey data and experience. The demographic assumptions
(disability, withdrawal, retirement, and mortality improvement) were updated to reflect the
2021 CalPERS Actuarial Experience Study. Morbidity was updated to the 2021 PEMCHA
study. there have been no other changes in the assumptions since the last measurement
date.

*Fiscal year 2018 was the first year of implementation, therefore only seven years are
shown.
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CITY OF OXNARD HOUSING AUTHORITY

OPEB

Schedule of the Authority's Proportionate Share of the Total OPEB Liability

Measurement Date

Proportion of the Collective Total OPEB
Liability

Proportionate Share of the Collective
Total OPEB Liability

Covered - Employee Payroll

Proportionate Share of the Collective
Total OPEB Liability as Percentage of
Covered - Employee Payroll

Plan Fiduciary Net Position as a
Percentage of the Total OPEB Liability
Notes to Schedule:

Change in Benefit Terms: None

Last 10 Fiscal Years*
(Continued)

6/30/2020 6/30/2019 6/30/2018 6/30/2017
4.61% 4.61% 4.96% 4.51%

$ 2,541,887 2,151,816 1,773,011 1,629,038
3,960,348 4,301,096 4,261,025 3,762,390
64.18% 50.03% 41.61% 43.30%
0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00%

Changes of Assumptions: The discount rate and payroll increases were changed from 3.69% to 3.86%
and 3.00% to 2.80%, respectively. The healthcare Trend Rates were updated to reflect 2024 survey data
and experience. The demographic assumptions (disability, withdrawal, retirement, and mortality
improvement) were updated to reflect the 2021 CalPERS Actuarial Experience Study. Morbidity was
updated to the 2021 PEMCHA study. there have been no other changes in the assumptions since the last

measurement date.

*Fiscal year 2018 was the first year of implementation, therefore only seven years are shown.
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ACTUAL MODERNIZATION COST CERTIFICATES



CITY OF OXNARD HOUSING AUTHORITY

Conventional program SF-195

Schedule of Actual Modernization Cost Certificates - Completed

Year ended June 30, 2024

Completed:

Funds approved

Funds expended - cumulative

Excess of funds approved

Funds advanced - cumulative

Funds expended - cumulative

Excess (deficiency) of funds advanced

108

CA16-P031-501-21

$ 2,394,856
2,394,856

$ -

$ 2,394,856
2,394,856

$ -




CITY OF OXNARD HOUSING AUTHORITY
Conventional program SF-195

Schedule of Actual Modernization Cost Certificates - Uncompleted
Year ended June 30, 2024

Uncompleted:
CA16-P031-501-19 CA16-P031-501-20 CA16-P031-501-22

Funds approved $ 2,165,525 2,143,230 2,544,515
Funds expended - cumulative 1,848,471 1,799,699 2,038,478
Excess of funds approved 317,054 343,531 506,037
Funds advanced - cumulative 1,774,942 1,745,139 2,007,307
Funds expended - cumulative 1,848,471 1,799,699 2,038,478
Excess (deficiency) of funds advanced $ (73,529) (54,560) (31,171)
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CITY OF OXNARD HOUSING AUTHORITY
Conventional program SF-195

Schedule of Actual Modernization Cost Certificates - Uncompleted
Year ended June 30, 2024

Uncompleted:

CA16-P031-501-23 CA16-P031-501-24

Funds approved $ 2,634,761 2,650,143
Funds expended - cumulative 797,699 807,960
Excess of funds approved 1,837,062 1,842,183
Funds advanced - cumulative 793,350 -
Funds expended - cumulative 797,699 807,960
Excess (deficiency) of funds advanced $ (4,349) (807,960)

110



SINGLE AUDIT REPORTS AND RELATED SCHEDULES



°
DaVISFarr Davis Farr LLP
18201 Von Karman Avenue | Suite 1100 | Irvine, CA 92612

CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS Main: 949.474.2020 | Fax: 949.263.5520

REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING
AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN
AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN
ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'’S REPORT

Board of Commissioners
City of Oxnard Housing Authority
Oxnard, California

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government
Auditing Standards issued by the Comptroller General of the United States (Government
Auditing Standards), the financial statements of the City of Oxnard Housing Authority
(Authority), a component unit of the City of Oxnard, as of and for the year ended June 30,
2024, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise
Authority’s basic financial statements, and have issued our report thereon dated February 7,
2025.

Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the
Authority's internal control over financial reporting (internal control) as a basis for designing
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our
opinion on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Authority’s internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion
on the effectiveness of the Authority’s internal control.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to
prevent, or detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a
deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control such that there is a reasonable
possibility that a material misstatement of the entity’s financial statements will not be
prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency,
or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a material
weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance.

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first
paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control
that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during
our audit we did not identify any deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material
weaknesses. However, material weaknesses or significant deficiencies may exist that were
not identified.
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Board of Commissioners
City of Oxnard Housing Authority
Oxnard, California

Report on Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the Authority’s financial statements
are free from material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain
provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which
could have a direct and material effect on the financial statement amounts. However,
providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit,
and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no
instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported under
Government Auditing Standards.

Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and
compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness
of the entity’s internal control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit
performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the entity’s
internal control and compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other
purpose.

‘Dﬂm‘r ﬁ; LLr

Irvine, California
February 7, 2025
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°
DavisFarr
18201 Von Karman Avenue | Suite 1100 | Irvine, CA 92612

CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS Main: 949.474.2020 | Fax: 949.263.5520

REPORT ON COMPLIANCE FOR EACH MAJOR FEDERAL PROGRAM;
AND REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'’S REPORT

Board of Commissioners
City of Oxnard Housing Authority
Oxnard, California

Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program
Opinion on Each Major Federal Program

We have audited the City of Oxnard Housing Authority’s (Authority’s), a component unit of
the City of Oxnard, compliance requirements identified as subject to audit in the OMB
Compliance Supplement that could have a direct and material effect on the Authority’s major
federal program for the year ended June 30, 2024. The Authority’s major federal program is
identified in the summary of auditor’s results section of the accompanying schedule of findings
and questioned costs.

In our opinion, the Authority complied, in all material respects, with the compliance
requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on its major
federal program for the year ended June 30, 2024.

Basis for Opinion on Each Major Federal Program

We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally
accepted in the United States of America (GAAS); the standards applicable to financial audits
contained in Government Auditing Standards issued by the Comptroller General of the United
States (Government Auditing Standards); and the audit requirements of U.S. Code of Federal
Regulations, Title 2, Grants and Agreements, Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements,
Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance). Our
responsibilities under those standards and the Uniform Guidance are further described in the
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of Compliance section of our report.

We are required to be independent of the Authority and to meet our other ethical
responsibilities, in accordance with relevant ethical requirements relating to our audit. We
believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our opinion on compliance for each major federal program. Our audit does not
provide a legal determination of the Authority’s compliance with the compliance requirements
referred to above.
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Board of Commissioners
City of Oxnard Housing Authority
Oxnard, California

Responsibilities of Management for Compliance

Management is responsible for compliance with the requirements referred to above and for
the design, implementation, and maintenance of effective internal control over compliance
with the requirements of laws, statutes, regulations, rules and provisions of contracts or grant
agreements applicable to the Authority’s federal programs.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of Compliance

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether material noncompliance
with the compliance requirements referred to above occurred, whether due to fraud or error,
and express an opinion on the Authority’s compliance based on our audit. Reasonable
assurance is a high level of assurance but is not absolute assurance and therefore is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with GAAS, Government Auditing Standards,
and the Uniform Guidance will always detect material noncompliance when it exists. The risk
of not detecting material noncompliance resulting from fraud is higher than for that resulting
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations,
or the override of internal control. Noncompliance with the compliance requirements referred
to above is considered material, if there is a substantial likelihood that, individually or in the
aggregate, it would influence the judgment made by a reasonable user of the report on
compliance about the Authority’s compliance with the requirements of each major federal
program as a whole.

In performing an audit in accordance with GAAS, Government Auditing Standards, and the
Uniform Guidance, we:

e Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the
audit.

e Identify and assess the risks of material noncompliance, whether due to fraud or error,
and design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such procedures
include examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the Authority’s compliance with
the compliance requirements referred to above and performing such other procedures
as we considered necessary in the circumstances.

e Obtain an understanding of the Authority’s internal control over compliance relevant
to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances and to test and report on internal control over compliance in accordance
with the Uniform Guidance, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Authority’s internal control over compliance. Accordingly, no such
opinion is expressed.

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and any significant deficiencies and
material weaknesses in internal control over compliance that we identified during the audit.

Report on Internal Control Over Compliance

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a
control over compliance does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of
performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with a
type of compliance requirement of a federal program on a timely basis. A material weakness
in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in internal
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Board of Commissioners
City of Oxnard Housing Authority
Oxnard, California

control over compliance, such that there is a reasonable possibility that material
noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program will not be
prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. A significant deficiency in internal
control over compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control
over compliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program that is less
severe than a material weakness in internal control over compliance, yet important enough
to merit attention by those charged with governance.

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described
in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of Compliance section above and was not
designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control over compliance that might be material
weaknesses or significant deficiencies in internal control over compliance. Given these
limitations, during our audit we did not identify any deficiencies in internal control over
compliance that we consider to be material weaknesses, as defined above. However, material
weaknesses or significant deficiencies may exist that were not identified.

Our audit was not designed for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of
internal control over compliance. Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed.

The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope
of our testing of internal control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the

requirements of the Uniform Guidance. Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other
purpose.

’Dﬁm‘r g’-’ LLr

Irvine, California
February 7, 2025
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CITY OF OXNARD HOUSING AUTHORITY

Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards

Year ended June 30, 2024

Federal Federal
Domestic Financial
Assistance Project Assistance
Federal Grantor/Pass-through Grantor/Program Title Number Number Expenditures
U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development:
Direct Assistance:
Conventional Programs:
Public and Indian Housing Operating Subsidy Grant 14.850 CA031-000001-8, 23-24D $ 600,317
PIH Family Self-Sufficiency Program 2024 14.896 FSS23CA496801 108,119
PIH Family Self-Sufficiency Program 2023 14.896 FSS23CA4968 87,434
Subtotal 195,553
Resident Opportunity and Self-Sufficiency
Service Coordinators Program 2022 14.870 ROSS221680 64,547
Capital Fund Grant Program 2024 14.872 CA16P031501-24 807,960
Capital Fund Grant Program 2023 14.872 CA16P031501-23 797,699
Capital Fund Grant Program 2022 14.872 CA16P031501-22 1,316,453
Capital Fund Grant Program 2021 14.872 CA16P031501-21 620,041
Capital Fund Grant Program 2020 14.872 CA16P031501-20 1,069,465
Capital Fund Grant Program 2019 14.872 CA16P031501-19 247,736
Subtotal 4,859,354
Total Conventional Programs 5,719,771
Section 8 Housing Assistance Programs:
Section 8 Housing Choice Voucher Cluster:
Housing Choice Vouchers 14.871 CA-031-V0028-0041 31,478,658
Emergency Housing Vouchers 14.EHV CA-031-V0028-0041 1,000,370
Mainstream Vouchers 14.879 CA-031-V0028-0041 213,431

Total Section 8 Housing Assistance Programs

Total Federal Financial Assistance Expenditures

32,692,459

$ 38,412,230

See accompanying notes to schedule of expenditures of federal awards
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CITY OF OXNARD HOUSING AUTHORITY
Notes to Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards

Year ended June 30, 2024

(1) Summary of Significant Accounting Policies Applicable to the Schedule of
Expenditures of Federal Awards

(a)

(b)

()

(d)

Scope of Presentation

The accompanying Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards (the “Schedule”)
includes only the expenditures incurred (and related awards received) by the City of
Oxnard Housing Authority (“Authority”) that are reimbursable under federal programs
of federal agencies providing financial assistance for the year ended June 30, 2024.
The information in this Schedule is presented in accordance with the requirements of
the U.S. Code of Federal Regulations, Title 2, Grants and Agreements, Part 200,
Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for
Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance). Because the Schedule presents only a selected
portion of the operations of the Authority, it is not intended to and does not present
the financial position, changes in net assets or cash flows of the Authority. The
Authority did not use the 10% de minimis indirect cost rate as covered in section
200.414 of the Uniform Guidance.

Basis of Accounting

The expenditures included in the accompanying schedule were reported on a
regulatory basis of accounting in accordance with the U.S. Department of Housing and
Urban Development (HUD). Expenditures are recognized in the accounting period in
which the related liability is incurred. Expenditures reported included any property or
equipment acquisitions incurred under the federal program.

Subrecipients

During the fiscal year ended June 30, 2024, the Authority disbursed no federal funds
to subrecipients.

2004 Capital Fund Revenue Bonds

On April 26, 2004, the Affordable Housing Agency issued Affordable Housing Agency
Certificates of Participation, Series 2004 (Oxnard-Santa Clara Projects) in the amount
of $10,370,000, evidencing a proportionate ownership interest in debt service
payments to be made with respect to certain Capital Fund Revenue Bonds, Series
2004, issued by the Oxnard and Santa Clara Housing Authorities in the amounts of
$5,820,000 and $4,550,000, respectively.

Principal is payable annually on April 1. Interest is payable semiannually on April 1

and October 1 commencing October 1, 2004. The bonds were paid in full as of June
30, 2024.

117



CITY OF OXNARD HOUSING AUTHORITY
Notes to Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards

Year ended June 30, 2024

(1) Summary of Significant Accounting Policies Applicable to the Schedule of
Expenditures of Federal Awards (Continued)

HUD has approved the issuance of the bonds and the certificates and has authorized
the Authority to pledge and assign its Capital Fund Program monies to the payment of
the bonds and, therefore, the certificates. During the year ended June 30, 2024, there
were payments made on the bonds for principal and interest totaling the amount of
$430,000, and, accordingly, those expenditures relating to the bonds have been
included in the federal expenditures of capital fund grants in the accompanying
Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards.
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CITY OF OXNARD HOUSING AUTHORITY
Summary of Findings and Questioned Costs

Year ended June 30, 2024

Section I - Summary of Auditor’s Results

Financial Statements

1. Type of auditor’s report issued on whether the
financial statements audited were prepared in

accordance with GAAP: Unmodified
2. Internal control over financial reporting:

a. Material weakness(es) identified? No

b. Significant deficiency(ies) identified? No

3. Noncompliance material to the financial
statements noted? No

Federal Awards
1. Internal control over major programs:
a. Material weakness(es) identified? No

b. Significant deficiency(ies) identified? None Reported

2. Type of auditors’ report issued on
compliance for major programs: Unmodified

3. Any audit findings disclosed that are
required to be reported in accordance

with 2 CFR 200.516 (a)? No
4, Identification of major programs:
CFDA Number Name of Federal Program or Cluster
14.871 US Dept. of Housing and Urban Development

Section 8 Housing Choice Voucher Cluster

5. Dollar threshold used to distinguish
between Type A and Type B programs: $1,155,333

6. Auditee qualified as a low-risk auditee? Yes
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CITY OF OXNARD HOUSING AUTHORITY
Summary of Findings and Questioned Costs

(Continued)

Section II - Financial Statement Findings

There were no auditor’s finding required to be reported in accordance with GAGAS.

Section III - Federal Award Findings and Questioned Costs

There were no federal award findings or questioned costs noted during the year under audit.
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CITY OF OXNARD HOUSING AUTHORITY
Summary Schedule of Prior Year Findings

Year ended June 30, 2024

Status of Prior Year Audit Findings:

There were no audit findings identified in the prior year audit report requiring follow up.
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